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STATE OF N W JERSEY 
INTRODUCED ,JANUARY 29, 1970 

By Assemblyman McDONOUGH 

Referred to Committee on Education 

AN AcT concernmg education and amendmg section 18A 20-41 of 
the New Jersey Statutes 

1 BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State 
2 of New Jersey 
1 1. Sect10n 18A 20-41 of the New Jersey Statutes is amended to 
2 read as follows . 
3 18A ·20-4 1 The board of educat10n of any Type II school dis-
4 tnct may without authority first obtamed from the voters of the 
5 district 
6 (a) Rent, on a year-to-year basis, or for a term not to exceed 5 
7 years, m case of emergency, bmldmgs to use for school purposes; 
8 and, 
9 (b) Take an option not to exceed 1 year m duration, at a cost not 

10 to exceed $100.00 on the purchase of any land which the board could 
11 lawfully purchase after securmg the consent of the legal voters to 
12 the purchase the1eof, but such option may be exermsed by the board 
13 only after authority to purchase the property covered by such 
14 option has been given at an annual or special school election[.]; and 
15 ( c) In case of e1nergency and with the prior approval of the State 
16 Board of Education, enter into a lease of temporary or relocatable 
17 buildings to use for school purposes for a term not to exceed 5 years 
18 with a provision to p1,trchase same at the optwn of the local board 
19 of education, and purchase said buildings 1itnder said lease. 
1 2. This act shall take effect immediately. 

STATEMENT 
Existmg law authorizes a Type II board of education to enter 

into leases for temporary bmldings in case of emergency, but 1t 
does not specifically cover options m such leases to purchase these 
EXPLAN.4TION-Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the above bill 

is not enmcted and b intended to be omitted in the law. 



2 

buildmgs without voter approval. It woul<l bo financially advanta-
geous if boards of education were allowed to purchase such build-
ings pursuant to such lease options, smce 5-year rental costs are 
closely comparable to or exactly the same as tho purchase price of 
these buildings, the exercise of an option to purchase after 5 years 
costs relatively little, and the bmldmgs contmue to be useful for 
much longer than 5 years. 

The purpose of this bill is to ellmmate doubt as to boa1 d authority 
in this matter by specifically empowermg a Type II board to ente1 
into currently available lease-purchase arrangements for temporary 
buildings without voter approval, provided the State Board of 

Education approves the transaction. 



ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN H~ EWING~ Good morningu ladies and 
gentlemen9 I am Assemblyman John HQ Ewingo Chainnan,of the 
Assembly Education CorrLmi ttee, and today we ar,e holding a 
hearing on Assembly Bill Noo 477 buto as we put out in our 
notice, we have a much broader field to cover in order to get 
as much information as we can regarding construction in the 
primary and secondary area of public educationo There is a 
strong feeling amongst the Legislators that the cost of 
school construction in the public area is way too high and 
they want to know the reason why it is so high, what can be 
done to lower these costs so that the burden is not put on 
the taxpayers and also so that we can still get the proper 
facilities so that the best possible education can be given 
to our childreno 

Firsto I would like to call on Mro Oren Thomasi 
Architecto 
0 REN T HOM A S 0 JR.,~ My name is Oren Thomaso Jro 

I am the senior partner in the firm of Thomas; Kolbeo Thomaso 
Poponi of Cherry Hillo I am a member of the New Jersey 
Society of Architects of the American Institute of Architectsu 
and a member of the New Jersey Department of Education Guide 
Advisory Committee for Schoolhouse Planning and Constructiono 
Over the years of practicing architectureu I have designed 
more than 75 school buildingso I appreciate this opportunity 
to testify on school building costso 

Before we discuss reduction of costso I think we must 
explore the reasons for high costs of school building con-
structiono The factors are many buto we feel, can be charged 
to two principal areaso 

The first of these is Educational Programc The 
refinements of what is taught and the kind of space to teach 
it in is becoming more complexo The increased allocation of 
programs to vocational educationo scienceso businesso resource 
materialsu physical education and other specialized space is 
costly both per square foot and per pupil@ 

Number two: Job Site Labaro The net production cost 
for job site labor has increased at a rate fifty percent 
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greater than total construction costs~ Federal and State 
prevailing wage requirements implement this unfortunate 
situation~ 

If educational programs are the largest contributing 
factor to school cost increases, who should prepare them? 

la If the program is prepared entirely by the casually 
informed voter and his elected school board representative, 
initial costs would certainly be lowered but the quality of 
education would lower to an even greater degreee 

2. If the program is prepared entirely by the educatoru 
at either the local or state level1 costs and education would 
both rise from present standardse 

3e If the program is prepared jointly by both of the 
above, which is now usually done, there are enough cross 
checks to insure good educational value,. The State Department 
of Education recommended standards are an excellent guide in 
this respecte We should like to point out that the mandatory 
requirements of the State Guide on Schoolhouse Construction 
would allow costs far less than the least expensive schools 
now being built. This is not usually done, however, since 
the factor of initial cost versus operational and maintenance 
costs sets its own desirable minimum expenditure. 

If job site labor is a large factor in increasing 
costs, what can be done to reduce it? 

ls Prebuilt or preengineered buildings~ Because of 
prebidding and predesign, these structures unquestionably 
reduce building program timee They do not decrease costs, 
however, even in the lower standard educational programs where 
they have usually been used. 

2@ Compulsory Building System Approaohe This approach, 
widely used in California and Canada, has not resulted in 
lower building costs. It has, however, upgraded building 
educational standards and made buildings a better investment 
valueo 

3e Volunteer systems and subsystems® This approach, 
widely acc~pted by experienced school architects, tends ,to 
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hold cost lines and give better valueso Its major deterrent 
is the reluctance of school board clients to accept non-
conventional methodss 

We should like to offer the following specific recom-

mendations~ 
lo Have the State Department of Education make avail-

able to school boards case histories of school building projects 
with recommended cost recordso 

2o Widen the role of the State Department of Education 
in advising recommended educational programsQ 

3e Repeal requirements of prevailing wage determinationo 
4o Study the systems approach as applied in other 

stateso particularly Florida and Californiao 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Mro Thomas, on the bottom on page 1, 

thereo in Section 3o you say: 11 This is not usually doneo 
howevera since the factor of initial cost versus operational 
maintenance costs sets its own desirable minimum espenditureo 11 

Welle the maintenance is an on-going factor, and donijt you 
feel this has to be taken into consideration? You can°t 
put up all the cheapest materials if the maintenance is --

MR® THOMAS~ What we foundu Mre Chairman, is in the 
normal board of education°s budget they will usually have 
approximately 10%0 as an averageo for debt retirement on 
capital expendituresQ Approximately 10% of the budget is 
also for operational and maintenance of their physical planto 
If we decrease the costo and we are always able to do this, 
below thato in other words to say get a 9% debt retirementa 
we would probably increase the operational and maintenance 
by more than that lo/oo And we have done this where we 0 ve 
had pressures to build schoolso there would be a limit on the 
amount of bonds they could sell! and so fortho where we had 
to reduce thiso the operational and mainteance r~cord has been 
poorer so that over the 20 years period of bond indebtedness 
the ne~ cost to the taxpayer was substantially highero 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ You don°t feel that the requirements of 
the State are that strict or narrow in a lot of districts, 
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because. you knowf we constantly hear from people, oh5 we 
have to do this or we have to do that because the State 
requires thiso 

MR. THOMAS: I am very careful. Mro Chairman, to say 
the mandatory requirement is theree I do agree that the 
State Departmentl because they feel the State is responsible 
for education of all the children in the State~ ~s designed 
to bring up a certain educational standardv However, the 
guide, the Legislature that implements the guide, says that 
we can only make rulings - I~m talking about the State 
Department of Education now - in areas of health and safety. 
And they have been careful to not overstep those bounds~ 

It would actually be possible, under the State guide, 
as it is now written, to go back and build a little red 
schoolhouse with certain areas of ventilation and light. 
But for lighting, I can have a bare light bulb hanging in 
the room if I have enough capacity in that light bulb to 
do it. I can have linoleum on the flooro I can use frame 
constructione I can have wood double-hung windows. I can 
do a lot of things. In fact, I think I could build a 
classroom for half the cost of the least expensive today, if 
I wanted to do this~ I would be doing a great injustice to 
the municipality. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Why?1 Because my maintenance 
factors would be so high that the life of that building 
wouldn~t pay. The factor of increased maintenance cost would 
be substantially moreo 

And there is some tendency that the educational values 
would also be less, the environmental standards and the 
ability of a teacher to teache This is a thing that it 1 s 
hard to draw an exact line on. Certainly every architect and 
every educator has a little different idea as to where that 
line should be drawn, but I am certain that the extremes are 
not goodo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: How, many schools has your firm 
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dealt with since you've been with the firm? And how long 
have you been with the firm? 

MR~ THOMAS~ I have been involved in about 750 My 
father had done around 1506 and the firm 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Well, when you draw plans for a 
school districto do you come up to Trenton with them and go 
over them with the State Department of Education for their 
approval? 

MR,. THOIV"lAS~ Yes" 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And does anybody come from the 
Boardo with youo at that timei or not? 

MR& THOMAS~ Usually notu although 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ You mean, they leave it completely 

in the architect 0 s hands? 
MRo THOMAS: Oh, noe The normal procedure is - we~re 

architects, not educatorsu - we 0 re given an educational 
program which is made up usually by the local educatoro 
local administrator and his assistantsa and the boarda and 
they determine the educational standards that are to be in 
thato And then we try to desiqn a shell around that educational 
program that will produce the best investment for the taxpayersa 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ But when they are gone over by the 
Stateu is anybody present or ~o you just mail the plans up 
and wait for several months or a year to get the okay? 

MR .. THOMAS~ Noa Sometimes we bring them up and 
review them in persono Sometimes there are representatives 
of the local boardo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Wella what do you advise the boards 
that you deal with? 

MRG THOMAS~ Wella the flrst submission is a schematic 
drawing which is not for construction but for educational 
programo will that school fit the educational programo And 
I think that we would usually recommend that we review it, 
only ourselvess Most of the questions that are brought up 
or, if there were representatives from the locai areaa it 
would be from the administrative area, not the school board~ 
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They usually don·t desire to. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, it~s usually a lack of 

interest on their part, isn 8 t it? 
MRa THOMAS: I think most boards maybe tend to take an 

attitude that they are involved in budgets and costs but they 
leave the education to the professional that they 1 ve hired 
to carry that out~ That's their normal attitude. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: It's amazing to mee the complaints 
you get and then the interest they don 1 t take in it, they 
don't jibeG And I was so shocked in one area3 in my own 
county, I believe, that this group told me at the first meeting 
they sat down with the architect and chopped $2 million out 
of the budget, and it turned out that they turned over the whole 
project to the Superintendent and to the Architect to draw upn 
They~ve taken no interest in it whatsoever. Donat you think 
it would be advisable to make it mandatory that they maintain 
an inter,,est in, it? 

MR. THOMAS: Well~ we certainly review it with the 
Board. I have never found any difficulty in opinions of a 
collective agreement wit.h, the Board of Education and their 
administration on what should be done~ I've found great 
differences between a board of education and the voters and 
in almost every case this is a lack of interest, lack of 
desire to be informed by the voter. They will have public 
hearings where they may have 5,000 voters to vote on it and 
itrs rare to get over 100 people to a hearing. And yete even 
board members who are elected with the express intent of 
correcting situations in a local district on cost, after theyire 
there a while and become informed they are not so vocal in that 
respect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You said you serve on the State --
MR~ THOMAS: Guide Advisory Commission. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Is there a conflict on that or not? 
MR;:, THOMAS: No .. There are, I think, four architects 

from different sections of the St~te, civil engineers, a good 
many educators! some builders, and we~re trying to determine 
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changes or interpretations of the guides~ rum certain that 
I have never had an issue before that Co1Tu~ittee on any 
project that we 0 ve ever been involved ino 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Of the 75 schools you've builto how 
many were private and how many were public? 

MR~ THOMAS~ Not more than five or six privateo 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ And what was the average cost of 

the private as compared to t~e publico on a square foot basis? 
MRo THOMAS: They were somewhat lessB it would be a 

small percentagem It 0 s difficult to interpret because the 
programs varye I think the private tend to have a higher 
program but maybe less cost per square footo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Were these privates parochial or 
truly private schools? 

MRe THOMAS~ Private parochialc 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Private and parochial? 
MRo THOMAS~ Noo privateo They were church 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ I differentiate between a private 

school and a church schoolo The church school I would call 
parochialo and the other the family pays the full tuition and 
gets no state aid0 

MR© THOMAS~ They had some degree of church sponsorshipo 
They were not Catholic schools but they were othero 

ASSEMBLYIV".IAN EWING: Wello when you say a percentage or 
so lesso what do you think the difference is in the building? 
Why should they be less than the public schools? 

MRo THO]Y[AS: Wello usually their programo their increase 
in programa they recognize that they have control over ito 
rum talking about the ones I 0m particularly experienced ing 
And as you build more spaceo bigger spaceso you don°t have 
to respond to the voter, that space tends to become cheaper 
per square foots In other words, if I have a classroom of 
600 square foot and it costs so much per pupil per square 
foot if I increase that to a thousand square footo it would 
tend to be a little less cost on the same standards of con-
struction~ Howevero our experience has beeno as you say~ 
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the parochial have not been less budget they have been more 
per pupil., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Does the type of material they use 
in parochial schools ever vary very much from the --

MR® THOMAS: I would say no. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Not at all? 
MR .. EWING: Not in my experience~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What do you think of the single 

contract versus the multiple contract in public schools? 
MRs THOMAS~ I prefer the multiple contract. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Why? 
MR® THOMAS: Well, it makes more work on our part in 

the fact that we have to correlate more prime contract bids 
but we like the control over it, and we have frequently taken 
bids both waysf taken bids on separate contracts or on 
group contractse 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yes, but the law right now is a joke. 
MR. THOMAS: Noa in private work we've done it because 

we feel it our obligatio~ to the cliente Once we get o~r 
exhibits~ plans and specifications done, it's our job to get 
it at the least possible cost. And we have never, even in 
one instance, been able to get a one contract at the same 
figures we have the breakdown. And I think that we get better 
contractors at the other level because we put the pressure on 
the prime contractor to competitive bid those others0 He's 
only worried about cost and not responsibility of those other 
contractors or how they're going to do the job. He won't get 
the job unless it's the lowest cost. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What type of other architectural 
work do you do? 

MR3 THOMAS: Industrial, commercial,. other 1 types of 
institutional. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Where are you, in the Camden area? 
MR. THOMAS: Yes., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, when you deal with private 

enterprise, with corporations:fbr factories or warehouses or 
8 
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something else, do you do that on a multiple bid or a 
single bid? 

MR. THOMAS~ Usually multiple bid, unless the project 
is very smallQ If itis, I don't know. thirty, forty or fifty 
thousand bid, or less, the single bid is the besto 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ What size contract do you go up 
to in your firm in the commercial work you 1 ve been doing? 

MR.,, THOMAS~ In commercial work? 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Yes .. 
MR .. THOMAS~ Four or five milliono 
ASSEMBLY.MAN EWING~ And you find it's better to do it 

multiple bid than single bido 
MR~ THOMAS~ Right~ In fact, sometimes a private 

enterprise is so anxious to get the quality in the field that 
he will have great difficulty and he will negotiate a 
particular segment rather than making it competitive bidse 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Do you think this is true throughout 
the whole State of New Jersey? 

MR. THOM,AS: Yes, I do4 if we 1 re talking about multiple 
bids now., 

ASSEMBLYlV.LAN EWING~ Yeso, That industry goes more for 
multiple bids than single bidso 

MR~ THOMAS: The very large projectso There are probably 
more single bids or nagotiated contracts in the smaller worka 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Well, why would they do it in the 
larger jobs if you think it would save a lot of money to do 
it in the multiple bid? 

MRa THOMAS~ Welli it's partly fi~cal responsibility~ 
maybe that they have some difficultyQ Another thing, if you 
get in - well, take industrial work, so many times you get in 
mechanical work where it 1 s hard to say where it leaves the 
building and where you go to the manufacture of the projecto 
And that all has to be negotiated or worked out anywayo In 
some industrial work, whep there 0 s a process kind of building, 
it becomes almost necessary to negotiate that part of ito You're 
more interested in responsibility there because it could be 
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eXpensive if you took a competitive figure on kind of an 
unknown. 

ASSEMBL~ EWING: Well~ do you feel that the major 
~orporations oLihe United States tend to multiple bids when 

j / 

they have a project put up for them? 
MR. THOMAS: Noo- We~v~ found that --
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I'm talking about the major 

corporations., 
MR. THOMAS: -- some of the large corporations that 

we ~,ve done a:i:::e interested in time, 11 maybe more than anything 
else, which is a f acto'r., They will have a schedule of time 
and they don(t particularly care about construction cost 
as long as the time schedule is met. 

ASSEMBLYMAN,EWING: Then you are inferring that with 
multiple bids it takes longer to put up a project? 

MR 1 THOMAS: I think it would tend to be tha way,,,-
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, don't you also agree that 

time is money? 
MR~ THOMAS: Well it depends on how much more time you 

are tal~ing about and the kind of building. In schoolhouse 
construction there probably wouldn't be any time differencee 
If I do an electric generating station there would be a lot 
of time difference. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: That 0 s interesting because one of the 
reasons for this particular bill we have before us today is 
because of a problem up north of hereo They got this con- 1 

tractor to come in and put up the building and it was done, 
I forget in how short a time but it was incredibleo Itfs 
a very fine structuree Grantedo the Department of Education 

I 

did some nit-picking like, they said the corridors were too 
narrow and finally measured them and found out they were wide 
enough for something of this natures 

MR., THOMAS: Well, we I ve done - we O re refraining 
ourselves only to low cost now, to getting low costo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: No, qualityG I think for education 
we must have quality and low·cost~ 

10 
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MRa THOMAS: Well, we have done some of these pre-
engineered buildings where wevve taken performance type bids 
and then gotten competitive bids on those and let contracts, 
and there is no question that the time interval is substantially 
less on those because all of the parts, all of the contract, 
everything is prebid and the design work is done prior to the 
time of receiving of the bidso And they would tend to be less, 
on a school project, in most cases, three or four months lesso 
Howevero at the same time we've taken bids on conventional 
construction of like clusters of classrooms and we've found 
that they were not less expensive, in fact they were between 
five and ten percent moreo Now the contractor, we don't tell 
him what to bid, hens determining the time and time is a great 
factor in his profit pictureo He has the greatest desire to 
expedite and do it in the shortest possible time because that 
means he makes more moneyo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, how many bids do you normally 
get on a job down in your area? 

MR~ THOMAS~ I 1 d say about ten on general construction 
and probably seven or eight on the mechanical endo 

ASSEMBLYMAl~ EWING~ Wnat percentage of your plan do 
you use in the next school? I mean1 you knowu piggyback on 
that you don~t have to do work on$ 

MR,,, THO:MAS~ Well 0 we 0 d like to use a much higher 
percentage than we useo rrhere are certain standards that 
we geto Howevero we 0 ve had requests where we 0 ve done repeat 
work for one school board and they say, 0'We like so-and-so 
school o do that againo 1

' But we find that costs vary year 
by year, a certain system or certain material, certain kinds, 
so that we constantly have to review this because what was 
the best and least expensive way to do things this year might 
not be that way next yearo And many times it is~ But if we 
don't do that, after only a few yeamperiod, we find that 
wevre not spending money wisely in areas© And educational 
programs tend not t90 drasticallyu - it isn't a revolution 
it~s kind of an evolutionary thing, but you will find that 
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therets a little bit more desire in this area and maybe not 
so much in anotherc So that they gradually change, in the 
small details, a wall section, how a roof drain is done. 
Those details tend to be alike but even major structural 
systems change. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you feel building costs 
are high for schools in New Jersey or not? In your area. 

MR. THOMAS: If you say per square foot, I would say 
no, in our area .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What do you think about New Jersey 
generally? 

MR(; THOMAS: I''m not sure I 1 m qu'alified to make that 
statement. I~would say that most schools are not, particularly 
when theyjre districts that are building a lot of schools they/ 
have some familiarity with what kind of schools they want and 
boards, administrators and architects who do that. There are 
just enough examples where somebody goes all the way the other 
way and makes the average look bad that I can't make that 
blanket statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN: There was a plan proposed here and the bill 
passed our House, it's in the Senate and I do not know what 
its fate will be over there, whereby the State would make up 
a series of set plans that would be available to various 
school districts and the initial work could be paid for but 
then, I guess the supervisory part of it would be at a much 
lower fee~ What is your feeling if the State came up with 
12 or 24 sets of plans for different size schools? 

MR~ THOMAS: I think if the State of New Jersey does that, 
spends that money to have those prepared they are going to 
look ridiculouso They are not going to use any big percentage 
of them, certainly not enough to effect that kind of saving 
in architectural fees9 My statement a few minutes ago about 
the review of systems, and so forth, - it would be impossible, 
if I were commissioned to do one of those, to make the 
perfect school. If it were right then, it would be wrong in 
a year or soe And other states have tried this route and it has 
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not been successfule And I am certain that to put this plan 
in effect there would be some expenditures to do ite But 
even on this educational program aloneo it just isn°t possible 
to tell every local district exactly what they 0 re going to do 
unless you furnish all the money, then they might do it® But 
even that way of doing it, I don°t think is good0 Pennsylvania 
takes that route a little bit~ Delaware does~ and if you compare 
their schoolbuilding costs with the higher level of governmentu 
New Jersey shows up well alongside of this0 I realize that we 
get a lot.of bond issues turned do'W!1 but the local voter is not 
stupid~ particularly when he 0 s informedu he makes the right 
decision0 If a local board or an architect has done something 

' I 

wrongu they 0 11 reject hims And a good portion of them are turned 
down because the local voter is not well enough informed® And 
if he is well informedu he will usually make the right decision© 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In your firm is there a set fee 
for the plans and supervision of a school project? Is it on 
a sliding scale? 

MR~ THOMAS: It 0 s on a sliding scaleo It varies from 
six to an extreme teno usually six to eight0 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Does it ever slide downwardo the 
more the.building costs the less the fee is? 

MRo THOMAS~ If it'gets'large enougho Oh 0 you mean 
a factor that if I get a lower cost they get a different fee? 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Thatu and alsou you knowo 
Y.IRo THOMAS: We 0 ve heard of this being donem We 0 ve 

never done it because we don°t think lt 0 s the professional 
thing to doo that it places an incentive on cost to us beyond 
what it should beo that our own incentive is to get low cost 
and we don°t care what happens after that initial costo and 
we do care .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Wello what determines thiso Do 
you set the fee when you first talk to the board? 

MR., THOMAS~ Yes., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Then what determines this - you 

say six to teno or eight to ten? 
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MR. THOMAS: The size of the project., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: All rightm What if you have a 

project for a million dollars, generally what would you charge? 
MR~ THOMAS: It would be around 7 percente 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And what if it 0 s five million 

dollars? 
MR~ THOMAS: It would be less than thato I can°t 

remember the sliding scale exactlye It 0 s a recommended 
standard., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Now in your history of the buildings 
that you 0 ve done, have you worked closely with the boards on 
this or mainly with the superintendent or the administrator? 

MRe THOMAS: Bothffl The board makes this determination. 
We like to work closely with the board~ Both of themo It's 
a teamwork effort@ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you find this true in your 
area that they really work with you or do they just pass it 
over to the superintendent or somebody? 

MR. THOMAS: Not as much as they should because they 
have other pressing problems~ I think their general attitude 
isa we 0 ve hired a professional, he knows what he 0 s going to 
do or what he should do, that our superintendent or 

-
administrator knows the kind of programo and we will address 
ourselves to matters of teacher problems, bussing and all 
the other things that make boards meet weekly or whenever. 
We would probably desire to have more participation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Now, in your recommendations you 
say: "Have the State Department of Education make available 
to school boarqs case histories of school building projects 
with recommended cqst records., ,u What is the recommended 
cost record? 

MR. THOMAS: Wello the reason I say this, there is a 
danger at the loca level that by word of mouth they have 
heard of some school some place that had an exceptionally 
low cost recorda let 0 s say on a pre-engineered or pre-built 
buildingo they oftentimes say they want X number of classrooms 
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and they heard that somebody got those and they will decide 
that 0 s what they want without going into it any further. 
And with very casual investigation of what they got for that 
amount of moneyo And there are other extremes where they 
don°t investigate8 they don°t go to the point of finding out 
whether schools even in their area are able to produceQ In 
other wordso both extremes are bad decisions~ And I don°t 
know what the instrument of making, particularly boards who 
have the purse strings8 acquainted with what are good values 
in schools® And I don°t think we look at it as how to 
build it cheap or how to build expensives it 0 s more of an 
attitude - and I am certain other school architects are the 
same - of getting valueotrying to get the best valueQ And 
we go in and try to educate the board in these values but 
we are not sure that they believe us always as much as they 
shouldo They say that we have a motive or reason for doing 
thatQ It would be better that it came from some other bodye 
And I would say the State Department is better to distribute 
that information about what other schools cost and what they 
get for their money~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, on the board that you sit on4 
have you recommended this to the board? 

MRo THO.MAS~ No., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING.~ How long have you sat on that 
board? 

MRo THOMAS: About a year and a halfe 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu is the State Department of 

Education in a position to correlate this information and get 
ir from the school districts? Do they know what the final 
bids areo etco? 

lVJRo THOMAS: Yes., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: They keep a record of that? 
MRo THOMAS~ That 0 s right., Well# I know they have it 

so I assume that they keep it., And they have schematics 
and construction outlinesa which are all submitted by the 
architect in his first thing, and they know the final bid 
and the final contract prices® Actually, Mrm Chairman, itas 
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the same thing that we 0 re doing here today that I think local -
boards forced to delve into the problem would make better 
decisions~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu how much on contact are you 
with your ,county superintendent of schools in the area that 
you work? How many counties do you work? 

MR® THOMAS: Wello I 0 d say mostly i~ three or foura 
like 75% in three or fouru 75% of the schools® I know the 
cqunty superintendents well~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wella would they be better ones 
to have this information available so that when they know 
a board is about to go out or thinking about it they can 
say, here 0 s the track record in our county so far and, if 
you 0 re close to another countyo the track record there? 

MRs THOMAS: They would be good disseminators of 
that information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: How much work does the county 
superintendent do in the planning? 

MR® THOMAS: Our experience has been that he doesn°t 
do much unless it 0 s a new type school in a district~ If 
a district doesn°t have a high school and is about to have 
one, then he becomes very much involved. Or if they don°t 
have a vocational school and the·n they have oneu he becomes 
very much involved~ But if it 0 s the same kind of school 
that that district has had beforeu he probablyo in most cases, 
isngt much involved~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Now in recommendation number 2 
you say: auwiden the role of the State Department of Education 
in advising recommended educational programsen Do you feel 
they ought to put 'up guidelines? 

MRa THOMAS: Well, I am sure that they would desire 
this. My interpretation now is that they are careful to not 
really press the area much except in h~alth and safety 
standards that they can°t,tell a local boa~d® Nowa a good 
portion of the ~ide is devoted to recommended standards but 
a little larger voice there by the State Department I think 

16 



wouldo in my personal opiniono be desirable® 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: So there wouldn°t be a proliferation 

of programs from one school to the other, you mean? 
MRe THOMAS: To maintain a minimum educational value 

for all schools in the State~ And I would think that the 
State Legislature would be interested in this so there isn°t 
a great varianceo or a great variance in minimum standards 
from one district to another~ 

But we have this case now where we 0 11 have a district, 
maybe it 0 s a poor districto and they 0ll sayo we need to build 
a qew school and they 0 11 have so many classrooms and they'll 
build so many classrooms and that 0 s alle And the adjacent 
district might have many enrichment areas beyond thatm 
And the one district won°t have the facilities to do any 
better and the State can°t make them do itm 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Not but the enrichment parto does 
it call for a different type of room? 

MRo THOMAS: Yesu in most casesm 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Are you thinking of something like 

audiovisual? 
MRo THOMAS: In the average elementary school now we 0ve 

found that half the total square footage is non-classroom 
space~ In other wordso if I take a standard classroomo that 
half of the school will not be designated to classrooms onlyo 
In the secondary schoolo that percentage will drop even lower~ 
It might be a fourtha a third1 it would be lower~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: When you say not a standard 
classroomo is it a flexible room or something, or can only be 
used for one particular function? 

MRQ THOMAS: Wello take the areas of elementary or 
remedial areasu the all-purpose roomso all of the kinds of 
space which are for student use which are not a standard 
classroom~ They might be smaller groups and they might be 
larger groups© And I 0 ve said that this is the principal 
cost of education which has improved9 It isn°t just a 
classroom or a string of classrooms, the school is a lot more 
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than that nowe The architects didn 9 t make 'that decision, 
the educators did and'the peopieo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You say6 nRepeal requirements of 
prevailing wage determination .. 19 What is that? 

MRs THOMAS: Well, when we do a school now we have to 
give to the State Department of Labor and Industry the 
approximate date that we 0 re going to bid that school and 
they send back the hourly rates of all the trades that can 
pdssibly work on that project and we have to incorporate that 
in our specification and tell the contractors that shall be 
tlie least wages you will pay for any of that workm And when 
this went into effect we immediately got a jumpe It doesn't 
affect all trades. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: When did this go into effect? 
MRs THOMAS: I 0 m not surem It was several years ago. 

Four or five~ I canut remember exactly. 
,, 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle is this to protect the union 
people? 

MR& THOMAS: I 0 m not certain but my understanding was 
that the principal people behind it were the contractors who 
didn°t want the competition of open shop or that kind of 

\ 

competition. I really don't know but that 0 s what I heard. 
Recently, at the Federal levelo they have the same kind 

of thing. With federal monies we have to do the same sort 
of thingo And it 0 s my understanding that the President 
said that that shouldn°t be anymore. He made a public state-
ment to this effect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What was that ca~ledo the Bacon Bill? 
MRa THOMAS: I can°t say. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: That was just recentlyu wasn°t itu 

the last month or so? 
( 

MRs THOMAS: Recently~ In fact, what I'm saying is 
that the'Federal Government recognizes this is a factor also. 

We found, and we think it was from thato that in the 
mechanical trades that in one year we got a jump of at least 
five percent, and it might have been more, above what the · 
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increases of values should have been in that one year, the 
very year that they did that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And no increase in productivity 
or qualitye 

MRo THOMAS: No0 But the key to this costo of what we 
have control overo is to decrease job-sight labor® We go to 
any means possible to try to keep reducing job-sight production~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Welle is there a statute on the 
New Jersey books nowo the requirement for the prevailing wage 
determination? 

MRo THOMAS: There must beu yesm Yeso there is a statuteo 
fairly recent .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle have you ever taken off a 
job and figured what it would cost if this particular law was 
not in effect? 

MRo THOMAS: I wouldn°t be able to do thatm The contractor -
I know what they tell me0 There are some kinds of trades -
a million dollar school is not made up of great big contractsc 
Some things happen by little contracts and little peoplem 
And some of those little contractors will pay their men one 
wage rate when theyare doing a school and another wage rate 
when they 0 re doing other kind of work that they get~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Well o wouldn ° t this type of thing 
go into effect with the private schools? The private schools 
don°t require this prevailing wage, do they? 

MRo THOMAS: Not to my knowledge, no., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Then there should be a considerable 

saving., 
MRo THOMAS: I said that I think there is some savingm 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello to go back to private schools 

againo when you bid those jobs are they multiple bids or single 
bids? 

MRo THOMAS: Multiple a all~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: At the school 0 s request or at 

your reque~t? 
MRo THOMAS~ Ours., 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: At your advising., 
MR. THOMAS: Right., The same thingo we always say they 

can bid all of our standard bidding procedures, they can bid 
one whole bid or their own part onlym 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And the last one: "Study the 
systems approach as applied in other states .. " What is 
that exactly? 

MR~ THOMAS: We 8 ll have some testimony later by one 
of the other architects on this., If you donut mind, he can 
explain it better., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Fines All right.. Thank you very 
much, Mre Thomas., 

131 
MR. THOMAS: Thank you" 

iJ; ASSEMB~YMAN EWING: Mr .. Robert Meyer, Architecta 
R O B E R T W,. M E Y E R: My name is Robert W. Meyer .. 
I am a partner in the firm of Meyer and Laudadio with offices 
in New Brunswick. I am a member of the New Jersey Society of 
Architects of the American Institute of Architectso I am also 
a member of the Committee on Schools and Educational Facilities 
of my professional society. I have designed school buildings 
of all types and sizes since 1952 and have done extensive 
research into the entire subject of the cost of school con-
struction~ I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this 
Committee to share with you the results of that researchs 

One of the newer methods of school construction involves 
the use of systems~ What is Systems Construction? Where is 
it being used? What can it do? Is it applicable to us - in 
New Jersey. 

The answer to these questions in summary form are a basis 
for quick enlightenment of the subject to stimulate thought 
and question., Hopefully, it will provoke interested individuals 
to read the many good books and articles published on the 
matter. We who are now studying the subject have the advantage 
of eight to ten years of research and development by otherse 
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WHAT IS IT? 

It is an approach to improve building technology by the integration of individual 

building subsystems into a coordinated building system. As time progresses new 

subsystems or components are being developed, but the pioneering systems of HVAC, 

Structural, Ceiling-Lighting, and Interior Partitions have allowed systems 

buildings to be erected more quickly, at lower cost than conventional buil,ding 

with individual approach. It is not a pre-fabricated building built off-site 

restricted by transportation regulations. It is a user developing criteria by 

performance standards effecting economy by mass buying or buying mass produced 

quality products. It's nature will permit flexibility for the changing patterns 

emerging from educational eevelopment and society change. It can be used in school 

houses, factories, commercial and other cuildings. It is keeping up with the times 

in an ever-expanding technological era. 

WHERE IS IT BEING USED? 

It began in California by integrating 13 schools districts into a single con-

str~ction agency. It is now being used in California, Florida, Georgia, Toronto, 

Montreal, Detroit, Boston and individual components are being used in more than 

1300 North American Schools. By the end of 1970 over 200 systems schools were in 

use or in development in 33 states. Components have been used in a few New Jersey 

schools and systems schools are being developed in 1 imited form. 

I think I should digress here a moment. There is a difference 

between a systems school and a component that goes into a school. 
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WHAT CAN IT DO? 

It can stimulate the creation of an environment at a cost adjustable to the tax 

structure. It can allow self-creation, and ind{vidual ism for community identifica-

tion. There is now sufficient knowledge, exper,1ence and technology to enable any 

district to build a single school through the systems approach. More than, 50 

companies manufacture structural, 1 ighting-ceil ing, mechanical ?nd demountable 

and portable partition s~bsystems. If, however, the criteria are incompl~te 

or inaccurately described, the responses will not be satisfactory and the 

quality of the environment will fall short of expectation. Systems can ,be the 

means to good quality environment for people, and if a space can provide the 

ideal comfort for one type of occupation, it should be able to provide the same 

amenities for another type of occupation. We, therefore, are not building 

obsolescence and today's schoolhouse .could become, tomorrow's health facilities, 

social center, commercial space or what. 

IS IT APPLICABLE TO US, NEW JERSEY 

It is applicable by its very nature to an industrialized state and varying climate. 

We need heat and air-conditioning and individual ism due to the many variables 

caused by our geological formations. Our localized tax structures can benefit by 

a "holding of the line" economy. On site construction r:osts can be held to a 

minimum. The systems building is applicable anywhere. Its application to New 

Jersey can be enhanced by revisions to existing statutes to relax the restrictive 

and out-moded regulations without sacrifice to hea1th and safety. 

The foundations of the systems approach is firmly established. Its future place-

ment in building construction is a certainty. Let us use this advancement wisely, 

now. 

Thank you, Gentlemen. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Mrs Meyer, how does it actually 
work? 

MR6 MEYER: We have done it in our officee We are doing 
it now and we are going to do it in the future. Actually, what 
it is is what you 0 ve probably seen in driving up and down the 
highway. You take a furnace, as the lay person would saya or 
an air conditioning unit and you put it into one package and 
you put it on a roof® That's only one location~ there are many 
others. That 0 s the HVAC, the heating, ventilating1 air 
conditioning part of it. The structure is another main part 
of it which is simply triangular shapes or other types of 
shapes. You can use any kind of terminology for that which 
any company has devised to be able to span a great distance, 
30, 40 up to 60 and 80 feet0 Now the structure is available 
when you work with the manufacturers at a very quick time 
element which becomes rather important9 

T~ere are systems, instead of doing individual, small 
components, as you might see in buildings or even remodeling 
in this particular building9 You take and allow the ceiling 
system to lay within the structure itself which again helps 
time and cost. And integrated with the ceiling system can 
be the lighting system which falls all in place. 

The walls, or demountable partftions or folding partitions,, 
' I ' 

and the terminology is quite extensive as to the way they're 
referred to, are nothing more than panels made up and inserted 

I, 

that can be movable,or they can be made up of individual 
materials,which are assembled on the job site but which are 
quick assembled materials, such as using metal studs and 
sheet rock on the j~b which are easy to be taken down and 

I 

can be replaced for 1 the changing pattern which might be desired 
within a particular structure~ 

There are more of these particular components and sub-
components a and so fprth, being-deveioped every day~ As I 
have indicated, there are £ifty qr more __ companies doins this 
now. We have used some of this in our school construction, 
at the present time~ As I indicated, we are going tos There 
has just been sent out in the mail1 within the last week or two 1 
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a book on th~s systems written by EFLo the Ford Foundation 
of Educational Facilities Lab, which is one of the basic books 
that I have referred to in my testimony here and which gives 
a little more enlightenment as to what some of the other 
districts are doing and what this can dou in more detailed 
form~ Mainly Toronto and Montreal are into very big programs 
nowo multi-million dollars~ California was the baby and 
they have taken the steps to progress from California into 
Florida, Georgia, etco So those are the pieces that go into 
a building which I am referring tom 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Is this more or less prefabrication? 
Is th~s really what it is? 

MRa MEYER: Prefabrication 0 yes and noo The components 
are prefabricated but it's put together on the job sitee 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you have any union jurisdiction 
squabbles on it because something comes in with a light plug 
in it? 

MRG MEYER: You 1 ll always have thoses To give a blank 
answer, yes~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you get more of them? 
MRa MEYER: I would not sayu with the experience that 

we have had, that we 0 re having any more problemse We have our 
normal problemse 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And what do you feel the reductions 
in cost are for this type of system? 

MRe MEYER: Itus very difficult to tell right 'now, to 
give a firm answer to that, because we have not had the full 
benefit of doing, in numbers, buildings of this typee I can 
give figures for a building that I have just done and is in 
the process of being built right now but I don°t think that's 
indicative of what we might be able to doe I am not saying 
that that is going to necessarily be the panacea for reduced 
school constructionQ I think I would like to emphasize the 
holding of the line economy so that it doesn't keep rising 
with the spiralQ 

But one of the difficulties here, that I think goes 
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hand in hand, that I think should be pointed out is the 
idea of what is a school made up of in labor and materials', 
and the idea of testimony today for cost reduction. If a 
building - and we feel it's pretty close to a fifty-fiffy 
break at the present time-~ t don 8 t think we, as architectso 
can do a~ything in recommendi~g how labor costs can come 
down, other than what Mr. Thomas said, this prevailing wage( 
rate, we can go back to that again. However, as contracts r 

are signed, and are signed every May, with increases every ( 
six months and.so forth, for a period of two or three years, 
whatever the termination of the contract is, there is a 
built-in escalation there that nobody can stop, especially~ 
when we 0 re on the prevailing wage systems So that part 
you cannot reduce. The only other part that you can try to 
reduce is to hold the line or try to keep the materials in 
line or having more materials brought to the job which are 
proquced at less cost in the factoryo which is certainly well 
known, the difference between the factory rate versus the 
construction rate~ for the same type of person~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you have an approximate idea 
as to how many schools you 0 ve worked on? 

MRo MEYER: Noa I 8 ve been working in different offices 
since 1952 when I came back to New Jersey from Ohioo And 
my firm now, the firm I 0m presently with, is five years 
old and we 0ve done about 25 schools in that period of timem 
But overalle it 0 s well above 75, but I never kept count. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, since you O ve been with the 
I I 

firmu for the schools do you do multiple bids or single 
bids mostly? Oho you have to do multiple bids~ 

MR.,. MEYER: We have to do both ways. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: All right,. What other type of 

construction do you do? 
MR~ MEYER: Well, may I elaborate on your last question 

for a moment@ we'have too by lawo do that and we have received 
bids both ways)'>. 

ASS~ EWING: Well, as I said before and i: repeat 
0 ' 

again, I'll keep repeatingo the law right now is a joke in 
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my mind and in the minds of many other peoplee What other 
type of construction do you, do? 

MR0 MEYER: Wella I won°t agree with you that the law 
is a joke if a systems type of construction goes ina This is 
the difference. It might be a joke today but if a different 
type of approach is used it might not be a joke tomorrows I 
think this is where we would have to differentiate theres 

We do do other typesof works We do commercial work 
which is basically restaurantse We do the small office 
building, which is commercial worke Presently, we have a 
commission for a parking decko all of these types. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you tend on these to do single 
bid or multiple bid? 

MR. MEYER: Yeso I certainly doe 
ASSEMBLYMAN MEYER: Which way? 
MRe MEYER: Single~ This is my personal opinion. If 

I can possibly do anything, I will push toward a single bid. 
I feel there 0 s an advantage to it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: From the experience you have had in 
New Jersey with the schoolso do you feel the State guidelines, 
or when you come dqwn to the State Departmento are too re-
strictive? 

MRe MEYER: In certain cases, yess But on the whole, I 
would say no. I think our Society has made a recommendation 
that there be an appeal board. I think more will be said 
on this later on~ That I would certainly subscribe to, that 
when there is a difference of opinion between a district 
and/or architect with the district and the Department that 
there should be some means of an appeal type of board to be 
able to resolve ito such as any variance board in any community. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu do you feel that a lot of 
boards of education just hide behind - they want certain things 
and they get by the voters by saying that the State requires it 
and nobody bothers to really look into it and find out that the 
State doesn°t actually require it? 

MRe MEYER: Nog I do not. The phraseology that you 
just spoke of is used quite oftenu but itns true that there 
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are certain things that must be done and they are required 
by the State$ So that is made as a fact at a public meeting 
or hearing or whatever it may bem But I don't think, on the 
wholeo a conscientious board hides behind this statement to 
try to get something which they normally would not have, just 
to try to get it within their district~ 

I approach the school construction problem probably 
a little bit differento or the design of the-bu~ldings may-
be a little bit different or quite a bit different from 
other architectsm I feel that I am an architect and that is 
my profession and my only professiono I am not an educator 
and I am not to tell a school district how to set up an 
educational program0 I requesto like anybody else, the doctor, 
the lawyeru and so fortho that you give me your program and 
it is my job to provide a structure at economical cost to 
house that programe If I have a commission in Monmouth County, 
I have no right to tell them what their educational program 
should be dictated by a buildingo In other wordsa I do not 
subscribe to the idea of the reverse system which says the 
school board tells the architect I have a million dollars 
now get me a building and I 0 11 put a program in it~ J 1 m 
sorryu I don°t subscribe to thato I feel that if a board 
does a job through their superintendent, through an educational 
consultant, through the State DepartmentB whoever they so 
choose to use, they give me the design criteria from an 
educational-end, then it 0 s my job to give them a building 
that will fit thato And I think this is the proper respect 
for education because it is so changing andu therefore, it is 
my duty to give them a building that can change with the 
changing educational programs 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello the question I would like to 
asko and I forgot to ask Mro Thomaso just say one thing alone, 
a cement block buildingo does it have as long a life in your 
mind as say a brick-faced building? 

MR., MEYER~ Yes., 
ASSElVIBLYMAN EWING: Well, is brick more expensive to 

use than cement block? 
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MR. MEYER: Generally, I would say yese But there are 
exceptions to every rule. Itrs the idea that if you use a 
certain type brick or you use a cheaper brick it can be a brick 
building but the cost might be the same as some of the more 
expensive blockss So a generalized statement of saying a block 
building is cheaper than a brick building might not be true 
because also you might be able to use brick on the outside of 
a metal sheet rock wall which could cause the same economy as 
a block building~ So there are no rules of thumb9 And this 
is where I think it is the integrity of my profession to be 
able to work it out for the board or for the district or 
whoever they are doing a school building for, to give them 
the facts as to the costo And they must make the decision~ 
Referring to one of your very early questions about maintenance, 
we as architects must give them the facts and the data and 
beyond that we can make recommendations but it is the districtis 
responsibility to make the decision because we do not know 
as architects - should we be from a neighboring county - what 
their tax structure is and what that district can supportm 
So I think it behooves us just to give the facts with recom-
mendations and beyond that it's necessary for five to nine people 
to make the decisiono 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Have you done any private schools. 
either private or parochial? 

MR~.MEYER: Yese we have done a parochial school., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And what do you feel about those? 

Did the cost come out the same as in the public schools? 
MR .. MEYER: No, it did not .. It came out less but the 

requirements were a lot lesso The educational program was less. 
The requirements with reference to health were less. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ When you talk about health, what do 
you mean? 

MR~ MEYER~ In reference to air changes in a room~ with 
reference to how many toilet facilities there might be in a 
building~ with reference to the foot candles, the lighting in 
a building~ a lot lessu so proportionately the building came 
in less. 28 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ How long has this school been in 
operation? 

MR., MEYER~ About three years nowo 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Are they having problems with the 

students because of this? 
MR~ MEYER: I have not followed this enougho siro to 

know® I should but I have not" 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Is the school still operating? 
MR. MEYER~ Yes" 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I meano it hasnnt been that 
detrimentai so that they would have to close the school or 
anything" 

MRo MEYER: Noo I wouldn 8 t say thatQ But there again 
is the fine line as to what is detrimental to health and what 
is not" That 0 s why we have ecology laws because the air is 
detrimental to USe 

And just as a simple little expanding of that, you know 
you can do all you want to in a school buildingo trying to 
change airo trying to do many other things, but if we don°t 
change the air on the outsidea the air that we pull in through 
a unit ventilator is absolutely uselessQ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Out at Hunterdon6 I went out 
there last yearo I guess it was or two years agoo and a 
tremendous design job had been done thereQ They have the air 
conditioning system so it brought the air from the operating 
rooms and everything and it was just being spread over the 
whole bu~ldingo so if there was a contagious childo with 
mumps or something like thatoit would go through the whole 
buildinge It 0 s incredible to meo the lack of forethought in 
that building., 

MR~ MEYER: One thing that just comes to mind, if I 
may digress just a momento sirm We are askedo as architectso 
as individuals and as a societye what can we doo First of allo 
I think we all want to helpa we want to keep the cost downo 
The idea of the architect increasing the cost of the schools 
to get a greater proportion of the fee has not made a m£11ionaire 
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of any architect 1n the State of New Jersey~ He does not 
receive repeat work by having high cost values. But the 
little things do add up6 And one of the things that I might 
refer you to is one of the bills that has just gone through 
the Senate and the Assembly with reference to the handicapped 

I 
I 

children a I 

Now, my comment is directed toward this bill~ I am 
not saying it~s wrong~ I"m saying it does increase cost 
because the bill now - and I have been told by the State 
Department of Education that it is to become effective 
September 1st, in the new rulings, that we now must provide 
toilet facilities for wheelchair patients, we must provide 
elevators, we must provide teiephones on every floor of a 
building at the heighth of a wheelchair patient, we must 
provide ramps and we must provide other thingse Now, I agree 
with these., 

I can give you examples where before the existence of 
this statute I very, very seldom ever put a public telephone 
outlet on the second floor of 1 et~ s say the secondary schoo'ls 
that I do, or any others, because it 0 s the idea of trying to 
control a student in a particular area so that they don·t 
have general use of a telephone~ So you're rather restrictive 
where they put theseG But now, when the statute says put 
one on the second floor, this is not a great deal of money 
but it does create administrative problems because you might 
put lt there for a wheelchair patient and at its heighth but 
you cannot restrict a general student from using it. So it 
is thereo These are just some of the little things that 
happen. It is a cost factora 

That bill, I think, is a very good bill for the 
direction that it went, but it is going to cost school boards 
extra moneyo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: That was taken into consideration 
when the bill was discussed, with the overall benefit to the 
poor unfortunate people.. , I mean, you~ re not handicapped so 
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you can°t be in their position~ 
Mf.., MEYER: Right., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And I hope to God you don°t have 
somebody in your family who is handicapped® I don°t eitherm 
But for the thousands of people that dou they have certainly 
got to be recognizedo And to just slough them off because 
it 0 s going to cost the people a few dollars more in that 
areau I would never even considere 

MR~ MEYER: Right., I agree with yous I 0m not denying 
this at all., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: When Mra Spare comes UPo I can ask 
him about the phone part buto to meu this does seem sort of 
silly Dot maybe they will have some good reasons for it, But 
we feelu in the Legislatureu that there are other areas where 
money can be saveds And I don°t think there is any question 
in my mind that there are many superintendentso or whoever 
the persons are who are responsibleu and I think it comes 
into the architectural fielde I 0 ve said it to other people 
so I will say it publiclyo that these people like to show 
what they 0 ve built so they can get the prize of the years or 
they want to show where they worked so they can show what 
lovely facilities they have~ And my own personal feeling is 
that a lot simpler designo etcQo could be a lot less expensive© 

MRo MEYER~ Wellu I will not totally subscribe to the 
idea that simple design is less expensive than a different 
type of design~ That would be another whole discussion periodm 
But just to expand one bit further on that bill that was 
passedu there might be a little bit more flexibility in 
something such as that too because the idea of saying put 
an elevator in a~school - this is fine and when we cano 
because of maintenance and so fortho we do put an elevator 
ino but many times it is put in on an alternate basis where 
the school boardu if they do have moneyo can put it in and 
see the total benefits accrued over the years and not initially~ 
But now this bill makes an elevator mandatorym And you knowo 
you start at ten grand on an elevator ver~ very quicklyo So 
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this has to start putting cost there8 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, you 1 re talking about an 

elevator, certainly not in a one story building, are you? 
MR .. MEYER: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, what's the average size 

of a two story school? 
MR .. MEYER: Average size? 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, you know, if you ire going 

to go into two stories, 1sn 1 t it a fairly substantial school 
that's going to have quite a substantial number of pupils? 

MR .. MEYER: Again; all the exceptions,. You know, if 
you put it in a city, it could be a small one; if you put 
it out in the country, it would be a big one maybe before 
you went up to the two storiese I mean. I use a rule 
of thumb of maybe teaching stations~ Over so many teaching 
stations and then I think itrs more advantageous from a 
construction standpoint! cost-construction standpoint! to go 
to two story constructione And my breaking point is about 
30 teaching stationso And! if you notice, I do differentiate 
a little bit from what Mro Thomas does, and maybe he didn 1 t 
mean to, but I don I t like the word 10 classroom 01 anymore 
because I think in education we are well beyond that~ We 
now have teaching stations. And, as he indicated, the teaching 
station can range anywhere from 15 to 80 to 2000 So it doesn~t 
mean that you have a lot of surplus area in a building because 
it does not happen to be a "classroom" of six, seven or nine 
hundred square feet as of years agoe 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What is your general feeling of 
having the State make up maybe a dozen or twenty-four sets of 
plans? 

MR. MEYER~ I will answer the same way as MrD Thomaso 
I think it will be a waste of moneye They won 1 t be used, as 
indicated by the experiences of other states~ And I feel 
that the administrative control. beyond the initial monies 
to develop the plans, would be absolutely astronomicalm There 
would have to be many statutes changed because it is the 
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requirement in the State stautes that there either be an 
architect 0 s or an engineerus seal on itQ And who then 
becomes 1iable should something go wrongoif the plans are 
issued by the State of New Jersey? Is it the State of New 
Jersey? Is it the architect who happens to have his name on 
it? The complications and ramifications of something such 
as thato as I say, is another good total session of discussiono 

Also when you take a set of plans and you can physically 
sayo yes I have an egg crate of 12 classrooms on each side of 
a corridor, this can be done~ And in one buildingu when you 
look at the plan in front of you, you will have the plumbing 
going to the righto in the next one you will have it going 
to the leftu and the third and fourth will be front and backQ 
Then who is to make the revision to these planso not only 
as to plumbing but the possibility of heating and ventilating# 
also the possibility of the electrical distribution within iu? 
Who does the changing? When they do do thiso what is the 
fee structure involved? And beyond thatu again back to 
responsibilityo who is going to take the responsibility of 
changing someone else's plans? Would I as a firm be asked 
to change Mro Scrimentivs plans? This just is not in the 
legal realmo It just doesn't worka 

Soo basicallyo overallo for administrating# that 
type of construction would beu to meu an unbearable type 
red tape situationo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ In the school work that you've 
done, how much liaison work have you done with the county 
superintendent? 

of 

MRo MEYER: Precentagewiseo below lOo Very littleo 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And do you take your plans down 

to the State Department of Education to have them reviewedo 
to see if they 0 re okay? Do you go down with board memebers? 

MRd MEYER: I take them down and go through the 
required procedures o as everyone else does.. 1I.t. -0 s only, 
on occasions when there are questions that I ever take a 
board or board personnel downo I feel most of the leg work of 

33 



the program should be done before we come to Trenton, that 
there are agreements between my client and myself and/or 
any other consultants that they may have. The State Department 
of Education, although I have been in disagreement with them 
at times and I do not agree with taking away their code or 
anything elsec - they have enough problems with the amount of 
personnel that they have at the present time and if we don 1 t 
have to expand upon those, as architects, why should we~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: How long does it generally take to 
get plans okayed? Whatjs the minimum to the maximum? 

MR~ MEYER: There is no set answer on that, as far as 

I 0 m concernedG The little green book that the gentleman is 
holding over here indicates that it takes thirtys sixty; or 
ninety days for different phasesm But those are like everything 
else1 those are only the time elements that have to be1 I 
would say, basically set in any code~ At times I have plans 
wait 8 to 12 weeks in the State Department of Educationa I 
also have had plans there 1 and 2 weekso It depends upon the 
season of the yeare That has a lot to do with it. It depends 
upon the money market and the feeling of the taxpayers, etc~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well,,I 1 m not talking about that~ 
I'm talking about the time it takes the Department to okay 
the plans so that you can start going on themQ 

MR~ MEYER: I think, if you are referring to the final 
stages which is the final submission, the working drawings, 
again there is no set answer because it depends upon the size 
of the building9 A small addition can take three days and a 
large high school can take three weekso So I couldn!t fault 
anyone to say they took longer on one job than another because 
it must go by the size of the jobo And I also think it goes 
by the amount of work that the architects put into it too. They 
have something to do about itB If anything, I do know at times 
when we have large rushes$ the State Department of Education needs 
more helpo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ I think in this area they do need it. 
Unfortunately, they took it out of the budget, one additional 
persone 
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.,, ~YER: And then tq go further on that one 
particular, :'statement<> It was taken out of the budget g they 

I ' 

donut,have the personnelu it takes longer for them due to 
,' ' 

basically not:a. total fa.ult of theme which is timeo and time 
converted on the old factor scale is moneya So when we talk 
about school constructi'on costso maybe we can helpawe can 
help from ~he very beg2nningQ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What do you think of the idea of 
a contractor being able to put up a building and lease it 
to a school? 

MRo MEYER: I really have not researched that subject 
enough~ ,r have looked into it a little bitm I would reserve 
judgment on, ,tha~ until I have more information"' My first 
judgment is,no but I do feel that the type of building systems 
that I 0m talking about here in the testimony today - I do 
feel this is the coming thingQ It is used ands as I sayo why 

.,_ ,1 t 

must a ~uil~ing u ,as I referred to in my testimony o the idea 
of occupationsb - why is it such that you only have to design 
a building to have one useQ A school buildingo to me, is not 
a building to be opened up at 8 o 5 clock in the morning and 
closed at 3 o 0 clock in the afternoon~ If society is dictating 
that to be,d~nee ,our time spent in asking about decreasing of 
school cost is·wasted® 

W~'~ust take a building and make it a community building 
so that 'it i~ u~ed all the time@ There are manyo many examples 
througho~t ~he 1

State ~here th~s is working very wello I don 8 t 
< • < 

see why i;t can •'t work th:poughout the whole state.. The idea 
l il 11 ')f IJ 

of adult,egucation, the idea of swimming poolso that seems to 
be a sori subj~ct in many areasc Think about yourself and 

' ' 
think ~bout the ~ther people that douand participate in health 
progrart1sa and you can chart a course for yourself@ And the 
male o le't 0' s take himo he plays b~sketball until a certain age 
and he 'plays football to a certain ageu and he does the same 
thing with any other sports a but asktfhe question what is-~ the 
age limit when you stop swimmingu and it 0 s sort of the top one~ 
So, is a swimming pool in a school district a waste of money? 
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It really is not when you come to think of it~ but it 1 s 
very-difficult to sell. But there are ways of being able to 
do these things., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, what is the general attitude 
of the Department of Education regarding your particular 
systems approach? 

MR. MEYER~ Drq Spare is sitting behind me and at ten 
0 1 clock on Friday of this week I have an appointment with him 
to go over more of what I 1

' ve said today with the idea of the 
adaptability of this to a school which is going through the 
procedures of being approved right now. So I feel6 there was 
a seminar in Cherry Hill about two weeks ago in reference to 
this and I attended that with many other architects! and I 

feelg we, in New Jersey, my personal opinion, just act a little 
bit slower than some other people~ I feel it has workedc as I 
saidJ in 33 states~ I think it can work for us~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, in the states where itts 
operating now, is it legislated that they have to use a 
system of this nature or is it just that the boards are on 
their toes and realize there is a potential saving? 

MR~ MEYER: As far as I know, it has not been legislated. 
It 1s voluntary and for the necessity of what weere talking 
about nowr They aren&t any different than we areu The cost 
and their taxes are the same proportional value. So it 
was something to try to keep up, as I said in my testimonyc 
with the times. We just can~t sit backG The Romans took 
bricks and put them together with mortar a long time ago. 
And in many cases, up until recently/ we~re still putting 
bricks together with mortar~ And I think we should at least 
take the time and~he effort to investigate this9 I will not 
sit here and testify that this is going to be our salvation~ 
I will say it is well worth the idea of looking into it and 
expanding on it to a greater degree than what we have done 
in the past. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Have you or your Association come 
up with a set of recommendations regarding the new legislation 
dealing with the handicapped child and the requirements for 
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the building, such as the telephone? I would requ~st, 
officially, that you let me know, either you or you make 
sure your Association doeso if there are things, such as the 
telephoneso etc., that may be questioned. 

MR~ MEYER: To answer your question, our Committee -
as you noted in the beginning, I am a member, - has not met 
on that particular bills I will bring it up before the 
Committee and we will get back to you with some type of 
answer or recommendationo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I would appreciate it very much 
because, you know, there may be things in the bill that we 
didn't realize when the bill was going through, and I think 
they should be taken care ofo unless the Department can come 
up with some really true justification for these~ 

MR._MEYER: I will be very happy to do thato 
AssEMBLYMAN EWING: All right. Thank you very much. 
MR. MEYER,: Thank you., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: We will hear from Mr., Adolph 

Scrimenti, ArchitectQ 
ADOLPH SCRIM ENT I: Chairman Ewing, 
my name is Adolph Rs Scrimenti0 I am the senior partner in 
the firm of Scrimenti, Swackhamer & Perantoni, Architects 
with offices in Somerville, New Jerseye I am past president 
of the New Jersey Society of Architects of the American 
Institute of Architects and a member of the Committee on 
Schools and Educational Factilties of my professional 
society. I have been involved in the planning process and 
the design of educational facilities since 1945~ I 
appreciate the opportunity to appear before this Committee 
to present my views on school building design and construction 
costs., 

Over the past five yearso the cost of new school facilities and 
voter reluctance to approve new programs by referendum have 
escalated drastically~ A sampling of the general public 1 s 
attitude indicates resistance to any proposal directly related 
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to a tax increase. The idea that schodl buildings can by some 

means be constructed for far less than proposed by the local 

Board of Education and their Architect and the notion that, by 

defeating a referendum, all related costs (including operating 

costs to educate the additional students) will likewise be elim-

inatea, is leading to false economical secur5~y. 

Contrary to the public's opinion. that new school facilities be-

ing constructed in New Jersey are excessive in cost,are the actual 

facts. School construction costs have been maintained and in most 

cases reduced when related to labor and material costs and educat-

ional programs that are predominant in today's new proposals. 

During the last five years, the thirty major trades have had salary 

and benefit increases exceeding 40% and, although productivity can-

not be easily tabulated, a field visit to any construction site 

will indicate the general level of activity in the industry. Like-

wise, contracting firms engaged in public work are inherently more 

sophisticated in structure and related overhead. The family and 

specialty trade firms have either adapted to today's methods or 

have been absorbed. Estimating, due to the variables of labor 

demands and the supply of an adequate labor force, has become an 

elaborate, expensive game of construction intuition rather than a 

statistical science. 

Construction materials, directly effected by the labor to produce 

them, have also increased in cost - Owners have been exposed to long-

range maintenance problems as the quantity of their facilities in-

crease and are prudently requiring materials that can be more easily 

maintained. The initial cost of ,better materials is a fraction of 

the maintenance cost of a cheap product. 
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New Education has been rapidly changing in c~ntcnt and technique. 

facilities must be more adaptable and resilient, capable of ace-

ommodating all types of groupings as well as evening, enrichment, 

recreational and summer programs. New eafety requirements such as 

fire detection, emergency lighting, hlgher i1Jumin3tion levels 

and increased ~entilation requirements have also increas~d the 

basic costs. 

\ 

Formal education of our children started in this Country in a on~-

room school, with a pot belly stove for heat and paneless wiridow 

sash for ventilation. 

Twen~y years ago we designed school buildings that required 90/,, 

100 square feet per student. Today 135/145 square feet per stud~nt 

is recommended. 

Twenty years ago, health and safety requirements as they affect 
If I 1i 

Mechanical and Electrical contracts were approximately 15/20% of 

the total costs of school building projects. Today they are app-

roximately 30/45%. 

The myth that architects are responsible for the increasing school 

costs is unfounded; in fact, the effort to reduce costs wh~rever . 

possible is mandatory in providing proper services for Boards of 

Education. New methods and materials and the systems approach are 

a few of the means by which costs may be stabilized and/or reduced, 

but it is now necessary to provide the legislative tools to permit 

new approaches to be fully implemented. 
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Many Architects are working to find out just how far we can go i~ 

standardizing the components of a school building without stulti-

fying the education that goes on in it. Nearly every State in the 

Country has learned through hard experience that you can't complete-

ly standardize on stock school plans. By the time you work out the 

individual needs of a given site, the utility connections, the 

electrical needs and the problems'of orientation and exposure, not 

to mention the whimsies of some of the local authorities - all you 

can stock plan is a section of a wall - and varying educational 

needs wipe out the feasibility of doing that. And most important, 

the failure to be able to take advantage of all technological ad-

vances in all phases of building design and construction materials 

and techniques will not only stifle our design capabilities, but 

without question, add to the construction cost of the school project. 

In my opinion you can only have stock school plans for use through-

out a State only when you have s:ock educational methods, stock 

teachers to apply them and stock parents to send stock children to 
I 

the school so that stock students may be developed. 

We'll never find out how to do things better if we keep doing them 

the same way over and over because it seems the safest and cheapest 

thing to do. Any private business that followed that philosophy 

would go broke in a short time. 

It is my recommendation that the following suggestions be seriously 
I 

considered for implementation by this Committee: 
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1. Examine extended use of the school building in terms of longer 

hours of use and/or the incorporation of other municipal fac-

ilities within a given community. 

2. Acquire land long before actually requjred - in view of con-

stantly rising real estate costs. And make certain that the 

Architect for the Board of Education has been hired to examine 

and evaluate the property before it is purchased. 

3. Plan'school projects more than the usual year ahead of the 

need. Give the Architect time to properly study the design 

problem and adequately weigh comparative techniques and mat-

erials. Not only will this save a good deal of money itself, 

it will allow more precise preparation of plans and specifica-

tions and insure closer bidding by contractors. It will also 

allow contracts to be bid and awarded on an intelligent basis; 
( 

prices are often driven up sharply because too many building 

projects are dumped on a saturated market at one time, when 

competition is absent. 

4. Design for ultimate use. This means planning for long-range 

needs so that additional units may be e~sily and economically 

added, and such items as utilities and utility connections can 

be made without costly tearing down and rebuilding. 

s. Investigate the possibility of using pre-fabricated units or 

components that do not retard the educational process and 

will result in equal competitive bidding. 

6. Avoid fast-buck and universal-solution schemes. There is 

simply no one design, proprietary school plan, total package 
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scheme available competitively in the New Jersey area today 

which can compete, either in qualit~, or price, with a school 

building designed and built according to local needs. 

7. Certain Guide (Guide for Schoolhouse Planning and Construction 

of the State of New Jersey Department of Education) restrictions 

and/or requirements that generally add to building costs should 

be reviewed for possible revision and/or deletion, especially 

in the Heating, Ventilating and Electrical criteria, as well 

as items such as minimum classroom sizes, etc. 

8. A Board of Appeals should be appointed in the office of School 

Planning Services of the Division of Business and Finance of 

the State Department of Education. Any new material, piece of 

equipment, building system or component that is deemed desirable 

and acceptable, should be considered for use in a school build-

ing. If contrary to Guide requirements, then the Board of App-

eals should have authority for review and approval, if deemed 

acceptable. 

It is further recommended that a Committee be appointed to study 

Education and the Physical Plant. Include J,egislators, Educators, 

Architects, Professional Consulting Engineers and Contractors among 

others, to review all of the above statements and recommendations 

as well as suggestions made by all who appear before this public 

hearing, and report their findings to the Legislature for possible 

implementation. We should strive to find solutions that will save 

money and will help, and not harm the educational process. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Mr~ Scrimenti, your firm has done 
approximately how many schools in the time you have been with it? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Mr. Chairmano I really don°t know~ I 
do know that we have been doing schools since I was released 
from the Army in 1945, and about 95% of our work is in the 
educational fieldo elementarya secondary and college buildingsm 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And what about in the private area? 
Do you do parochial and private schools? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Parochial schools, noe In the private 
area we have done a number of buildings at Blair Academy but 
that is about all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You 0 ve done buildings for Blair? 
MRe SCRIMENTI: For Blair Academy but not in classrooms, 

primarily gymnasiumsa swimming poolo dormitory spaces, 
administration areaso etc9'0 none in classrooms~ TheyPre 

, still operating with the classrooms that they had,built way 
back in about 1918© 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And the products they turn out 
seem to be all righto don 8 t they? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Absolutely. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you feel the building costs for 

the contracts you had for Blair are lower on ape~ square foot 
basis? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: No© I would say that they are about , 
the same as we find in our own Somerset County area9 They 
should be cheaper in that area, but they 0 re not because ther~ 
aren°t many contractors around that areao they come in from 
New Yorke 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In the private area, say for Blair, 
do you use single bid or --

MRa SCRIMENTI: Absolutely~ One contract8 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well againo I guess it depends on 

the curriculum they have but there must be a certain percentage 
of the plans used in one school that could be used in another 
school, aren°t there? 1 Certain drawings? 

MR~ SCRIMENTI: You mean for one school district into 
another school district? 
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ASSElY.IBLYMAN EWING: Yes., 
MR® SCRIMENTI: I would say no, because the education 

and educational systems are completely different, in my opinion, 
from one district to another® The people are different. I 
would not dare recommend that a school, for instance, that we 
built in Somerville we build in Manville or we build in other 
parts of the Stateo The people are completely different~ 
The system of education is different and the kids are differento 

However, I can say this, if you are within a district 
a~d they desire to have, say, two or three schools that are 
identicalo I have no objections In fact, we have done this~ 
Because here now the educational process is the sameo the 
people are the same and the people who are teaching are the 
same soo therefore, I would have no objection to thiso In fact, 
B~idgewater Township has done thiso We designed what they call 
a standard school for them to be-used on the elementary level 
from K through 4o Howevero they built the first one~ a year 
later they wanted to build the second one and there were changes 
made on the second becauseo as we said earlier, things change, 
the system changedo education in the community itself changesm 
So they decided, wellu we don't want this room this way, we 
feel we can do better if we change it~ They had toilet rooms 
in the fourth grade, I believe it was, and when it came to the 
second building they didn°t want them~ They decided that the 
location of the boiler room was far better in another area 
on account of the fact that the terrain was different where 
the second school was built. The same thing applied to the 
third school@ So, when it came to the fourth school, they 
scrapped everything, the fact being that they finally found 
that they paid us more in architectural fees to revise, their 
drawings to comply with their new requirements than if we 
had started from scratch8 And they have not used the standard 
plan for their district sincee And their attitude has been 
that they will not do it again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you work in conjunction with the 
County Superintendent 0 s Office at all? 
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MR\9 SCRIMENTI: Absolutelya yeso sir., I have 
learned through hard experience that you better work with 
them. Here is a man who is the county superintendent and 
he knows the problems of the communityo and we definitely 
contact h~m while we are working on the drawings and keep 
him very well informed of the status of the drawings® 
In some cases the superintendent of schools will come to 
the State Department of Education when we present schematic 
drawings for Department of Education review& 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle when you come down with the 
plans to the Staten do you bring somebody from the board 
generally, or not? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Generally, yes they do come& On 
occasion, they don°t. The boards that we have worked with 
have felt the desire and expressed a desire to come along, 
and we think this is good because they see what the process 
is like and they possibly might stop objecting to certain 
things they have been objecting to in the past~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you feel they hide behind 
the phrase, well the state requires such and such and that 
sort of thing? 

MRo SCRIMENTI: Sometimeso yes. But we find that by 
the time we get through with the preliminary drawings most 
of this is unfounded® The.one complaint that most of us have 
is we feel thatu in the heating-ventilating field especiallyo 
the restrictions are much too high insofar as the guide 
requirements are concerned. And I have a feeling that the 
lighting requirements probably are so. But I wou~d rather 
have an expert on lighting review and evaluate this~ I think 
the entire guide, even though it 0 s a fairly new oneo should 
be reviewed and reviewed completely with the thought of 
economy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What is your feeling regarding 
the lighting requirements compared to what the person would 
find in the average home of a student? 
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MRe SCRIMENTI:, I would say it~s a lot better ln 
any school constructed in the state todaye 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Than in the student 0 s home? 
MRe SCRIMENTI: Than in the home~ It 0 s a lot betterm 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do these lighting requirements 

vary very much with the higher education buildings that you 
do? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Noa not reallym We have a little more 
leeway in the college buildings that we doo and I must admit 
that in certain areas we do use less lighting fixtures, in 
certain areas .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In higher education buildings? 
JY.IRo SCRIMENTI: In college buildings~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Therefore the lighting intensity 

is down a bit .. 
MR$ SCRIMENTI: Yes 0 that 0 s right~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And any industrial work that 'YOU 

have done --
MRe SCRIMENTI: We have done a number of research 

buildings.. That O s
1 

the other 5% of our work o the research 
field, drug fieldu paint field® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What are the lighting requirements 
there? 

MRe SCRlMENTI: In some cases they are even much more 
strict than the schoolhouse guideo based on what they do~ 
Naturallyo a drug companyo working with vaccinesu as they 
don in the laboratory this lighting- is quite expensive~ 
Howeveru this is a specialty and planned for thiB purposes 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you think there is much merit 
in the leasing of buildings to the school by a contractor 
putting them up? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: From the experience I have hado siru 
I would say noo and I would not be involved in any building 
of that typeo insofar as being an architect is concerned® I 
would have nothing to do with it~ I think it 0 s nothing but 
problems and I think it 0 s going to cause headaches for the 
districts .. 
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ASSE¥BLYMAN EWING: Why is that? 
MR~ SCRIMENTI: Wello the experience we have had in 

this leasinge First, how are you getting around the bidding 
laws on thiso I don°t knowe The experience that we had was 
that we had a tremendous difficulty trying to resolve this 
insofar as the bidding laws were concernedo to the pointo as 
you knowo this was brought before the Grand Juryz As far as 
I'm concerned, I don 9 t think there is much competition in 
the field, in the leasing. In my opiniono you really must 
select the person that you want to do this worka decide on 
a price and then let hi~ have ite because insofar as competi-
tion is concerned, writing the specification, it would have 
to be a general specification which is very difficult to dom 
When the bids comeo you really have no idea who is the low 
bidder on account of the fact that one may use different 
flooring material, different wall materialo different 
structureu different finishes throughout the building, and 
it becomes a very difficult task for the a~chitect to make 
a determination as to who really is the low bidder based 
on what the community is getting insofar as the building is 
concerned~ I wouldnat touch it. We had one very bad 
experience .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Is there anything in your 
Association that prohibits the writing of specifications 
so that only one manufacturer can bid on a job as far as 
school construction goes? I know it happens out in the 
public sector, you know, corporations9 I was wondering if 

...... 
there was any requirement in your own Associations 

.... 
MRQ SCRIMENTI: The Association? The Association 

wouldn°t have any requirement that would restrict you from 
doing thiss The Association simply wants us to comply with 
the laws. And the law will not permit us to write any 
proprietary spec, or write a specification that will include 
only one material and not have othe~ manufacturers come in 

, I 

and bid on an equal basis. I would sayo number one 8 in my 
opinion this is wrong~ I still believe in competitionQ And 
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I would hesitate in writing a specification or recommending 
to any client that they stick to one material~ Even in 
our research buildings where the research engineers are very 
strict about one particular item that they want and they 
must have it, we still make certain that we have something 
in the specification that can possibly let somebody else in 
so that we keep competition keen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: On page 3 of your testimony, 
next to last paragraph, you saido 19 New methods and materials 

I 

ana the systems approach are a few of the means by which costs 
may be stabilized and/or reducedo but it is now necessary 
t6provide the legislative tools to permit n~w approaches 
to be fully implemented. 01 What is that? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: This is one of the items that MrQ 
Meyer was talking aboutm 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But what legislation? 
MR0 SCRIMENTI: Wellu you would have to change the 

bidding laws to make 'it easier to get systems people to be 
bidding on work in the Stateo In this State, in my opinion, 
we're not ready for this kind of construction© The reason 
why we 0 re not ready is because many companies are reluctant 
to come in here on account of the bidding laws that we have9 
It becomes a little bit more difficult and a little bit 
more restrictive for theme So that if we go to a true 
system, I think the bidding laws would have to be changed© 
I don 1 t think you could have 0 say 0 five contractse Somebody 
would have to study exactly how they would have to be changed~ 
I don°t know at the momente But I do know that it is dif-
ficult for these people to come into this state with the laws 
as they are today.. J 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well I hopeo personallyn that the 
State will get around too for tb6se districts that need it, 
a 12 months school year so the buildings probably would be 
used to a greater extent that waye I certainly think the 
community part definitely should be done by the local communitye , 

MRe SCRIMENTI: That applies to colleges toos Colleges 
are doing this now and I fail to see why boards of education 
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can°t open their schools 12 months a year and open them 
until 11 o 0 clock at night .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And again, number 6u on page 5, 
! 

I guess you 0 re referring to the bidding laws. You say: 
"There is simply no one designo proprietary school plano 
total package scheme available competitively in the New 
Jersey area today .. " 

ME. SCRIMENTI: That 0 s right® 
I 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But it is elsewhere. 

-

MR0 SCRIMENTI: That 0 s right. There are many companies 
that do have systems that in my opinion are good, and we 
have investigated them. When it 0 s time to make a determination 
as to how to write the spec and what other company will be 
eligible to be bidding, based on the specification that we 
write, it 0 s almost impossible. You are almost tied down to 
the piece of equipment and the system that the company is 
selling~ I have no objection to that if the architect and 
the board of education review this carefully and this is 
really what:· is best for that district, econo~ically and 

I 

educationally. I don°t see anything wrong with it. I 
don 8 t see why the law can°t be changed to accommodate it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What states do you think are good 
models right now that can do this which we cannot do? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: I really don°t know~ I haven°t 
investigated this too much. I don°t know what states are 

I 

really successful in this~ To my knowledgeo the two best 
that I 0 ve-heard of are California and Florida. California 
has been'daing this for some timeo so has Florida@ And in 
California apparently it has proven very successful because, 
to my knowledgeu the majority of schoolhouse buildings in 
California are built on that basis .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well o we,1° 11 send away to those 
states to get the statutes in those areas~ 

Have you had a'meeting with the Department of Education 
regarding the criteria for heatingo ventilating and electrical? 
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MRo SCRIMENTI: Our Societyo the schools and Educational 
Facilities Committee of the New Jersey Society did have a 
number of meetings last year and we hav~ written a paper on 
this and it was just recently submitted! to the State 

I 

Department of Education for their reviewe We had a number of 
comments regarding the new guideo and suggestions as to review 
and reevaluationm It was just recently turned into the Board 

I of Education and I doubt that they have; had enough time to 
I 

really look.it over as yetm I 
I 
I 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well o is the're difficulty now - in 
number 8 o on page 6 u you say u0Any new material o piece of 
equipmento building system orcomponent'that is deemed desirable 
and acceptableo should be considered f~r use in a school building .. n 

Nowu does the State go down that far as to say what you can use 
I 

and can°t use? 
I 
I 

MRQ SCRIMENTI: Well 0 yes 0 if it doesn°t comply with the 
requirements of the guide and other codes that the guide refers 
you too you can°t use ite And they 0 re 

1
justified, at present, 

based on the law and rules that they hive~ And I think that 
I 

this Board of Appeals is absolutely esiential® They have them 
in other states® There are many new materials coming out all 
the time that might save money and are better~ Why shouldn°t 
the Board of Education have the privilege of at least investigating 

I 

them0 I think a Board of Appeals will Igo a long way toward 
I 

resolving some of these problems~ 
I also feel that it 0 s possible that if there are any 

questions of interpretationuinsofar as the guide is concerned, 
maybe here 0 s where it ought to go rath~r than where it does now© 
It is trueo we have recourse now but 0 if there is disagreement 

I 

in interpretation between the architectso the board and the 
Department of Educationo then it goes to the Commissionero If 
there is still disagreemento then it goes to the Department of 
Higher Education® And I don°t feel I should wait that long and 
I don't think the district should be waiting that long© When 

I 

school building costs rave been going up at the rate of 1% a monthu 
I think time is of the essenceo I don°t want to waste the time 
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doing this. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well o what background does the 

Commissioner have in building construction? 
MRQ SCRIMENTI: I can°t answer that® I don°t knowe 

This is the reason why I feel the Board of Appeals is very 
important® And people should be on the Board of Appeals 
that understand educationn understand architecture and 
engineeringo as well as understand building materialsID 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wella in say the last five yearsa 
have you had many appeals that went up to the Commissioner? 

MR® SCRIMENTI: Not that I recall on an appeal basisi 
no® Generally if we find that the product is not in 
compliance with the ~uide or any of the codes that they 
refer you too we drop it® We haven°t explored this any 
further. We simply turn it over to the company and sayo we 
can°t use your producto now you see what you can do with it® 
It takes a lot of timeo Mr~ Chairmans and we have enough to 
do to be designing the proper school plans for the Board 
of Education® And there are many products that are not 
acceptable® That 0 s why we turn it over to the manufacturer~ 
We feel that he 0 s the one who is selling it so tha~ he 
will do a possibly better job of convincing the people 
that be that they should accept it® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: That 0 s the trouble in the public 
area, the convincing part of it is sometimes bad® 

Wello right now are they adding new materials or 
equipment or systems to their list saying that these are 
not premissible? 

MRe SCRIMENTI: As far as the State Board of Educationu 
is concerned? 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yes .. 
MRe ~CRIMENTI: No, not to my knowledge® I don°t 

know® I don°t think so~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well when did they last change 

their requirements? 
MRo SCRIMENTI: I don°t recall how old this new book 
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is® I imagine it 0 s about two years old® I don°t really 
I 

remember., But o. you see o we can° t blame ii t entirely on the 
guide because the guide refers you to other codes© It 0 s 
the other codes that I 0m also objecting;to~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yesu but thiJ would be the latest 
updating of those codes® 

MRs SCRIMENTI~ That 0 s right® 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello this is three years and maybe 

some of the requirements they have are fifty years oldu or 
something a I ' 

MRe SCRIMENTI: That could bes 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Did your Assqciation sit in on the 

revision of that? 
MRe SCRIMENTI: We had members o~ the New Jersey 

Society of Architects in on it but the Associationu as a 
groupu noo but we did have individual members on ito 

/ I 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: On the Task ~orce that actually 

I 

worked on it., 
MRo SCRIMENTI: I believe soo yes® 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Now in this iast paragraph you sayo 

11 It is further recommended that a Committee be appointed to 
I 

study Education and the Physical Plant .. 1

1

° From what point of 
view is this? 

MRe SCRI~£NTI: This includes just about everything 
i 

that I saido physical planto what goes tnto ito exactly 
what goes into it® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: 
up with new criteria? 

Wello I mean1 this would be to come 
! 

MR~ SCRIMENTI: Absolutelyo yeso sir© In educationo 
I 

in a senseu go aheado let 0 s start from ~cratcho I meano we 0 ve 
been complaining now for a longo long time about bidding laws, 
the Department of Educationu why we 0 re forced to do things -

I 

why don °0t we start from scratch and let Os see if we can do 
it right now., 

I 
I 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Okaye Thanklyou very much® 
MRoSCRIMENTI: Mr® Chairmanu· I would like to mention 

something very briefly about the bidding laws that we have 
i 

now~ You 0 re right when you say that they are ridiculous 
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to the point of being idiotic® There have been so many 
bills presented by the Legislature! I 0m sorry to sayo 
during the past three years that it really is ridiculouse 
Why so many have been presented that have caused all this 
confusionu I really donut know® You will not have a single 
contract bid bill unless you satisfy the specialty contractoru 
such as pl~ingo heatingo electric, steela etc® They 
donut want to lose their identitye I spent three years on 
a special committee back in u61 to 0 63 that included all 
other trades involved and included the Department of 
Education, through Dr~ Westby, it included the attorneys 
of all of the contractors 0 associations, and we thought we 
arrived at a bill that was acceptableQ The specialty con-
tractorso as I saido don°t want to lose their identitym They 
maintain that they are at the mercy of the general contractor, 
he squeezes them to the point where they are not making moneym 

I would suggest that you consider a bill where you 
have all of the specialty contractors turning in bidso all 
fiveo the five major ones turn in bids0 When the bids have 
been received and it has been determined that the low bidders 
are satisfactory and you are ready to sign contractso you 
then assign the specialty contractors to the general con-
tractor and he then becomes the prime principal in charge 
of that project© 

Now here you seea the specialty contractors feel they 
haven°t ~ost their identity! they bid on a private basiso it 
is their figure that they are getting the job for and not 
some contractor pushing themo as they statea and that they 
are satisfied with this system® 

Number twoa the big problem always has beena who 
determines and who coordinates the work~ Fallacy has been 
that the architect does this9 This is not soe All the 
architect can doo based on this contracto is inspect the 
construction from time to time® But somebody must be at 
that job every day in the week coordinating the work0 The 
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specifications sometime sayo or generally sayo the general 
I 

contractor shall do this® But consideripg the fact that 
you have four other contractorsu prime ~rincipalso with their 
own contractors 0 they tell them to go to[ the devila tney 
won° t listen to them., So o we O re constan1tly holding job 
meetings attempting to decide who comes to the job when to 
do his particular work., [ 

In this bill I would also include the hiring of an 
l 

individual that would coordinate the work between the prime 
contractor and the others® 

Now this is a bill that this gro~p came up with in 
1963® I believe Senator Batemanu at that time Assemblymano 

I 

was one of the sponsors® Senator Maraziti was part of this 
and this was considered to be a great bill., And everybody 

I 

agreed that it was a great bill until ttle very last minuteo 
when it came time to vote the general contractors association 
reneged on their promise and pulled out®I Why they pulled 
outu I donut knowo Somebody told me it 'was probably the 
labor situation., I don°t know® But they did pull outw 

I 

And we have had absolute chaos ever sinde~ The bill that 
you have nowo as you saido is ridiculous because you place 
the specialty contractor in double jeopardys 

I 

If I am an electrical contractor 1and I 0 m going to turn 
in my own bido that 0 s sealedu I also now have to turn in a 

I 

bid to a prime contractor© rum giving 4way my hand0 If he 
has a friend who is an alectrical contractoro he is going 
to let him know what my figure is® So± don°t have a chancem 

I 

Thereforee I 0m not going to give my figure to a general 
contractoro Thatus why this law is ridiculous® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But the number of specialty con-
tractorsu have they diminished perceptively over the last 
two years or so? 1 

MRe SCRIMENTI: In certain field~o yes® We used to 
have a great many more people in the he~ting and ventilating 
fieldu especially in the area that involves duct worke I 
think if you were to check the subcontractors in this field.u 
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there are very few that manufacture this material today~ And 
this is what leads to a great many delays in school con-
struction today® With the air conditioningo or with the 
air circulation that we requireu if you don°t have the right 
man doing sheetmetal work and the right man doing the hearing 
and ventilatingo you are going to have delays on it® This 
is generally the last thing that is donew There aren°t many 
in the other fieldm It 0 s unfortunate that we lost the 
father-son contracting team that really read a specification 
the first time and never looked at it again because they 
knew they had to turn out a proper building and it had to be 
completed to their satisfaction as well as the architect'sm 
We really don°t have that kind of an individual today~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: They took an interest in their 
job but people don°t care about it anymoree 

MRe SCRIMENTI: Wello maybe it 0 s the high cost of 
labor that 0 s doing thise I don°t know® Maybe the con-
tractor isn°t making any money and that 0 s why he 0 s trying to 
save~ I really don°t know~ But I do know thato as I stated, 
labor has gone up a great deal@ And if it continues to go up 0 -

as we started to sayo we built our first school for $13®00 
a square foot in 1945; now the same kind of a school is going 
to cost us about $28 to $30® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Thank you very much~ 
MR~ SCRIMENTI: Thank you® 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: We will recess for lunch and return 

here at l:20e 

(Recess for lunch) 
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(Afternoon session) 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I apologize for my late return. I was 
having lunch with some gentlemen who were going to testffY 

! 
but they had to go back. 

Is there anybody here from the School Business 
I Administrators? 
I 

Mr. Elmer F. Corda, School Business Administrator and 
Board Secretary. i 
E L M E R F. C O R D A: Mr. Chaibnan, I want to thank 
you for giving me the opportunity to ap~ear before you in 
connection with this matter. j 

This bill is supposed to allow Boards of Education in Type II School 

Districts, in case of emergency, to enter into a lease purchase ar-

rangement for temporary buildings without voterl approval providing 

the State Board of Education approves the transaction. It is also 

concerned with not only one's specific type of bonstruction and 

finance but also all aspects of school construc~ion and funding. 

I 

The main problems.confronting school districts in schoolhouse con-

struction are the following: 
I , 

1. Financing 

2. Construction costs 

3. Community involvement 

These three items individually and collectively deter a local dis-

trict from providing adequate facilities on a timlly basis. There-

fore it is accurate to assume that there is a ne~d for change in 

the legislation that would provide local districts to acquire school 
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facilities in a more expeditious manner. Some of the changes that 

ought to be considered are: 

1. Evidence of sound planning for any facility 

2. Stronger powers granted to the State Department for 

strict review and evaluation of plans presented to them 

3. Financial aid similar to the Emergency Building Aid 

fund to be granted to these districts requiring emer-

gency facilities. 

4. The permitting of the community to participate in the planning 

and review and an opportunity to vote on the question. If 

defeated by the voters it is presented to the Commissioner 

of Education for his review and approval. 

Another thought is in the area of stock plans by the State Department. 

This concept could be implemented on a voluntary basis by local com-

munities but not mandated. It is my feeling that the local district 

should have the right to determine the kind and quality of facility it 

desires for the students of that community. 

Another aspect could be that those selecting the use of stock plans 

may construct the building with State Department approval without voters 

approval. Those selecting plans developed by a local architect must 

submit their school to referendum. 
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I have saidu in a very short st~temento many things, 
and I-am sure that you would like to interrogate me a 
little further on some specifics dealing with my statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Mre Cordau ls Willingboro in the 
process of building or have they been building over the last 
couple of years? I 

MRo CORDA: Willingboro has been undergoing a school-
house construction program s~nce 19580! It is presently 
involved in building and it has been building a school 
approximately one a year or one every two years® The 
community has grown from a rural 88 stµdent populated 
community to a presently 15u000 students since 19580 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In Willingb
1

oro do you use the 
same architect on an on-goir1g basis a1l1 the time? 

MRe CORDA: I would like to share with you 
Willingboro O s unique kind of experienc;e which indicates 

I 

that possibly a different outlook on the method for 
acquiring a schoolhouse could be implemented~ 

I 

As you probably known the builqer of Willingboro 
was Levitt & Sons® Levitt & Sons did construct seven 
elementary schools and a secondary scHool for the com-

I 

munity at no costm Two succeeding elementary schools 
were built on a lease plane the lease ,be~ng held by Levitt 
& Sons oro better yetu an educational lfoundationo the 
Willingboro Education Foundation which is a subsidiary of 
Levitt & Sons® 

o h o o I We have in our sc ool district presently ten 
elementary schoolso one under constructionu one of the tens 
two junior high schools and a senior liigh schoole 

I 

The plan for leasing is working in Willingboroe Of 
coursea the reason why it is working ~s because of the plan 
of that community® Our community is based on a park 
concept where a certain number of homes are built in each 

o I parke Within that park there is an elementary school® 
And when you build a community centered around a park 
concepto you know that the community is always looking for 

I 
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the same kinds of facilities that the other communities 
are havingu the other parks are havingo 

We started out with a 24 classroom building and we 
wound up with a 33 classroom building, but we had the 
opportunity of making the modifications in this building 
as we so desired as time went on~ We were able to enlarge 
library facilities0 We were able to enlarge learning 
resource centers or have learning resource centers® We 
were able to update and upgrade our building as the builder 
was building these parkse But the basic plan of the 
building remained pretty much in contact~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu on the leaseo was it 
approved by the voters? 

MR .. CORDA: Oho yes., But there is some question 
about that that I would like to raise for your review., 

The lease plan, under the accounting system would 
come under the current portion of the budgets under the 800 
series, and we thought that that would be a better way of 
handling our debt limit, that is if it was in the current 
portion of the budget that it would not reflect the debt 
of the community® However, we were surprised when we went 
in for the second lease that the Division of Local Finance 
looked upon that leasing as part of the debt of that 
community .. Aad reallyo when you look at it from that point 
of viewu then you say to yourselfo why lease? 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you feel that the state 
requirements are too restrictive? 

MR. CORDA: In terms of the plans and specifications? 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Yese In other words 0 do you feel 

you could get less expensive constructionu less cost in the 
overall school building? 

MRe CORDA: Our experience has beenu in Willingboro, 
that we were able to get exceptionally good results, in terms 
of costo utilizing the State Department 0 s guide~ We have had 
no real problems in cost because of the State Department 0 s 
guide .. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you think the cost 
would have been lower1 though? 

MR .. CORDA~ If? 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: 

I 
I 

If some of tlhe restrictions 
I 

hadn't been in their requirements? 
MRc CORDA: Oh, yes, they would be lower~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But you don 8 t feel they should 

be relaxed? 
I 

MR .. CORDA: No8 I don'to becaus~ I thinke if I read 
these guides correctly in terms of air :exchange and in 
terms of lighting requirements and in terms of space per 
childe - I thinko reallyo our State Department of Education 
is not looking for the utilization of ~hat building for a 
period of one year or two years or thrJe years© I think 

I 

they are looking at it from a longrange kind of thing~ And 
I think this may be a very healthy approach to planning for 
schools. I think that if we minimize the amount of 
lighting. or minimize the amount of ai~ exchange, or minimize 
the concept of what is required in terms of air conditioning, 

I 

I think that we might run into a serio~s problem if nothing 
happens in connection with our ecology problem and our 
pollution .. 

I think that really the things bhat are in the 
I 

schoolhouse guide for construction are lfor the health and 
welfare of the child itself and I know 1that it does present a 
little more cost but I think the child 0 s education is 
probably more importantQ And if we can make an environment 
that is more healthy or conducive to learningu then I think 
that individual child is entitled to ttlat kind of consideratione 

I 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you know;of any factual evidence 
where some of these older buildings that we certainly have in 
the State of New Jersey have hurt the ~ducation of the child? 

MR. CORDA: If we're talking about an instructional 
program that's strictly structured along the traditional 
aspect, where a child is stationed in oJe spot, in one seat, 

I 

in one chairo for the duration of his time of education in 
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a schoolo then I can see where maybe it would not harm himm 
Howevero I think that in the present concept of educationo 
where we have children moving more frequentlyo going to 
different areas of the roomo' where we have children working 
more independentlyo where we have educational resource 
materials located in different areas of the roomo I think 
and often times we-do have from time to time more children 
in the classrooms than we would normally have, based on 
such things as team teachingo large room instruction, 
large classroom instructiono small classroom instruction, 
and I think that what is being looked upon as good education 
and good experiences for young peopleo - I think that these 
kinds of requirements in terms of construction could be 
looked upon as being a very favorable thinge 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ In the construction in your 
municipalityo how close a part do you play with the architect, 
following it through? Do you come down to the State Board 
with the plans and go over them? 

MR. CORDA~ Yesa 
Mr~ Chairmano I think I would like to elaborate on the 

sytem that is being followed on a local level that may be the 
cause for the problem in terms of construction cost® 

As you probably known a school district thatns doing 
its job has got to come to the conclusion that it needs 
additional facilities not less than five years before the 
building is actually being usede Anything beyond that is 
crystalballinge 

What first must be done is the establishment of facts 
and data that will convince not only the Board of Education 
and the Administration that it needs a facilityo but also 
convince the community that it needs another facilityQ And 
oftentimes the Board of Education or the community challenges 
the administration in terms of their dataa We wind up with 
utilizing approximately a whole year trying to convince either 
five board members to go ahead and give us the approvalu or 
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convince the communityo yeso we need a 1 ew buildingu So 
now we have four years® In that next yiaro by the time the 

I • • Board gets the issue on the-agenda for d1scuss1ono for the 
I 

selection of an architect, and ultimately for the interview 
of architects, we find that a board nowlis confronted with 
fiveo six, seven and as many as ten architects to interviewe 
Now the best that we can tell these arciitects when they come' 
in is really the kind of building and a!!proximately the number 
of children that 1 s going to be in the b ilding, and give some 
cursory overview of what the pr,ogram wold consist of. 

And the next question the archit ct is confronted with 
is how much is it going to coste The aI1 chitect is forced, 
many timeso to committing himself as to what the approximate 
cost for a building of this kind is goi1g to beQ And if 
his track record indicates that the pribe that he is quoting 
is a good price in the eyes of the Boarb of Education, he 
may have an inside track in getting theljob. If his experience 
has been dealing with boards of educati0n where they do want 
a lot of material that is maybe conside!ea expensive but 
may very well reduce maintenance cost, hbviously his track 
record is going to show that his cost pir square foot for 
his building would be higher@ He doesnl~t have the inside 
track0 

Every architect makes an honest ppraisal of what the 
building is going to cost without drawiig one lineo That~s 
at the interview@ He is selectedi he slgns a contract, and 
then we start talking about the buildinr!. He comes up,with 
a schematic plan and the schematic plan is the time when he 
has to come up with the estimate of cos for that buildingo 

Boyo there's a lot of work in te 1 ms of preliminary 
planning and final planning to actually really know, without 
a shadow of a doubto what that building is going to cost 

I 

and that wonrt give you the information until after bidding. 
If that architect does not have n the bank a certain 

number of square footages that he couldlplay with, because 
after schematic plans and during prelim nary planning, and 
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preliminary planning doesn 1 t occur until after the referendum, 
he's already placed himself on record that the estimate 
for the building will be X number of dollars~ But during 
the preliminary planning and final planningo he 0 s constantly 
being hit by the administration, by the community, and the 
State Department of Educationo that certain areas of the 

' facility need to be enlarged or additional facilities have 
to be included~ certain storage areas have to be added~ So 
he has got to put in new square footages, in those plans, 
without changing his estimate because the referendum has 
already been approved. So he has to have a bank of square 
footage in his estimate of costo 

If nothing is changed in his preliminary and final 
planning in terms of total square footage, and if that is 
placed out to bid, then he obviously will come in below his 
estimate because the extra square footage is not included in 
that building .. 

He has got to be a Houdini~ He is a man who places 
his reputation on the block and if the extra square footage 
is in~erted and the bids come over the estimateo then not 
only is he placed on the chopping block but the administration 
and the board of education is placed on the chopping block 
because they want to know why. 

I don~t know whether we can answer that intelligently, 
because there are a million and one reasons why that happenso 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In your school district do you 
make trips down here to the Department to go over the plans 
with the architect? 

MR, CORDA: Yes(!) 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do any board members come with you? 
MR .. CORDA: No., 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Why? 
MR. CORDA~ They're working~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu do you think if you had 

meetings in the late afternoon with the Department that you 
could get some board members to cornea or don't you think 
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theyire interested? 
I 

MR~ CORDA: When we have hearings before the State 
Department, Division of Local Finance, we may get a board 
member or two who will appear there., But I think that 

I 

more importantly is in the discussion of the schematic 
plan level where a lot of thought has to be given, because 

I 

in order to come up with a reasonable ektimate for that 
buildingo we~ve got to know what we 0 re talking about at 
the schematic level so that the preliminary planning and 

I 

final planning does not present too many problems to the 
architect or to the administrationa 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: In your reco~mendation you 
say: "Stronger powers-granted to the State Department for 
strict review and evaluation of plans presented to them. 11 

I 

Stronger in what way? You mean/ they can eliminate or add 
and say this is what you have to do? 

MR~ CORDA~ Yes~ I am thinking labout the fact that 
what is happening up to now, in terms of the local 
district relationship with .1.ts communitiyo we find ourselves 

I 

selling a community a building that it may or may not accept, 
or we may have a strong division in our community as to 
whether or not the building that's bein/g proposed is an 
adequate and sufficient buildingo Now, of course, the 
State Department says that is an adequate and sufficient 
building, but when a referendum is turried down I think that 
the State Department of Education has to have stronger powers 

I 

that will basically convince the community that it must move 
I 
I 

in that direction or the education of that community 1s going 
to be greatly harmedQ 

1 

I think that. number one, the eJidence of sound 
planning for any facility must be one whereby the State 
Department has got to come out with a ~tatement ifu in fact, 
the community does need-additional facility~ it must com-
municate with the local district community and endorse the 
fact that the additional facility is irt fact needede 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wel11 should they tell them, you 
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knowu they have to-go to a 12 months school system rather 
than put up a new building? 

MR® CORDA: We have already gone through that 
discussion in Willingboro and weure on double session 
right now., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ That 0 s not a 12 months system? 
MR~ CORDA: Wello that 0 s very easy to say, to use 

your facilities for 12 months but it's a very impractical 
kind of things We had another situatlon where we had a 
45-15 plan, the kids go to school 45 days and off 15 all 
during the yearo Well, that proves to be a real public 
relations problem because there will be children on 15 days 
vacation in the winter time but will be going to school 45 
days during the summer, but mother and father are on 
vacation in the summer time and how do you arrange that kind 
of thing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But it is working out in other 
areas of the United States, and very successfullyQ They 
have overcome those problems~ 

MR® CORDA: Well, there's only one area that I know 
of that's implementing it and theyure doing away with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Who is that? Well, I believe 
Atlanta is on ito 

MR. CORDA: Yes1 Atlanta, that's the one thatns 
going to do away with its 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Thereus one out in Michigan or 
Illinois .. 

MR. CORDA: We communicated with Atlanta and they're 
doing away with ite They 3 re experiencing too many problemsm 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: All rights Thank you0 
Dre Harold Seamon from the New Jersey School Boards 

Association .. 
HAROLD P~ SE AMON: Mre Chairman, I am 
Harold P0 Seamon, Director of Special Services for the 
New Jersey School Boards Associationm As you know 1 our 
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Association represents the 600 local boards of education 
in the State of New Jersey. We apprecifte the opportunity 
to present our views to you today. Thel expansion of the 
Committee's concerns in these public hearings to include all 

I 

aspects of school building construction! and funding is 
commendable. However, the variety and scope of issues 
available for consideration necessarily1 precludes a 

I 

searching examination of each and every! issue this 
afternoon. Additionally, we do not possess the specialized 
expertise of some of the architects whof have testified 
before you today. Therefore, the testimony I present today 
will deal only with those issues that are of major concern to 
the member boards of our Association. will refer to 

I 

several specific bills of interest to local boards and 
also introduce some concepts that are somewhat more general 

I in nature. 

1. These hearings were prompted by the Committlee's consideration of 
I 

Assembly Bill Number 477, a bill entered at the request of the New Jersey 

School Boards Association. This legislation iJ based on a resolution sub-
I 

mitted by the Union County Regional High School District No. 1 Board of 

Education and approved by our Association's deiegate assembly in December 
! 

of 1969. This bill would permit boards of education to enter into lease-
I purchase arrangements for temporary or relocatable facilities to use for 
I 

school purposes for a term of not more than 5 years. Under existing 

law, Type II school districts are authorized to! enter into leases for 

temporary buildings in case of emergency, but the statutes do not 

I specifically cover options in such leases to purchase these buildings 

without voter approval. We have found that 5 year rental costs approximate 

the purchase price of/these structures. 
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A-477 is a reasonable measure because boards of education now leasing 

temporary buildings pay so much in rent~l for the five-year period that 

a subsequent purchase under the option would cost very little; yet existing 

laws prohibit a Type II board from acquiring real property without the 

approval of the voters. It would be advantageous for school districts to 

enter into such lease-purchase arrangements for they could well derive 

added usefulness from these facilities. This flexibility will be particu-

larly helpful to school districts in a time of high construction costs and 

fluctuating enrollments. The bill specifically calls for the State Board 

of Education to approve such transactions and we believe this requirement 

of prior approval provides adequate safeguards for the expenditure of 

public funds and for adequate physical planning. We urge your support of 

this bill. 

2. S-182 was signed by the Governor on March 8 and is now Chapter 42 of 

the Laws of 1971. This act requires boards of education to include 

facilities for the physically handicapped in every public building. In-

cluded in new facilities must be one principal entrance with ramp access; 

toilet facilities and drinking fountains to accommodate wheelchairs on 

each floor; elevators for wheelchairs in all multistory buildings; a 

working area for the physically handicapped in all laboratory and shop 

facilities; and one public telephone at a height accessible to wheelchair 

pupils in each building. 

The New Jersey School Boards Association strongly supports the intent 

of this law but respectfully requests that an amendment be added that 

would ease the requirement of having these expensive facilities in each 

and every building. Many districts have a large number of separate school 
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buildings; for example, a district might have 

junior high schools, and 2 sem.or high schools 

the intent of this law and, first and foremost 

6 elementary schools, 4 

We would suggest that 

the needs o± the children, 

would be served if each physical~y handicapped child were ~nable,d to 

attend classe1o in a building equipped with suer. ta~ilit1.es. ,However• 

this would mean that only one or perhaps two br1-ld1.ngs at each grade 

level would have to meet such tequirem8nts, Such an amendment would re-

duce the added burden upon the local taxpayer lb he supports the 

construction of new facilities. 

3. S-182 mandated costs to local districts without providing the necessary 

funds. In this regard, we would again raise ]I problem of major concern to 

local boards of education. State mandates in the area of school con-

struction, as well as in all other areas, pla e demands upon the fiscal 

resources of the local school district that rjsult more and more frequently 
I 

in rejection by the voters of budgets and bond issues. This year, 186 of 

528 budgets, or 35.2%,were defeated. The mosj recent figures on bond 

issues show that in the 46 of 113 elections,oll approximately 40%, the 

bond issue failed to gain voter approval. We urge that mandated require-

ments be accompanied by appropriations that would enable the district to 

maintain a tax rate that will be tolerated by lthe ~ocal property owner. 

Mr. Chainnan, I would like to ilterject at this point, 
on point 4 we wanted to include in thel record Assembly Bill 
838 which permited Type 2 boards to take an option at a cost 

I not to exceed fair market value of such option on the 
purchase of any land. This bill has bfen passed by both 
houses of the Legislature and is now awaiting the Governor's 
approval, or action by.the Governor. fe would like to thank 
the Assembly and the Senate for the su port of this aµd would 
like to again ask for your support for the record. 
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5. Enactment of S-712 would assist local boards as they seek to ascertain 

whether real estate contemplated for school purposes is suitable for 

school constructionQ At the present time, there is no statutory authority 

for the board to make surveys, test borings or the like without the consent 

of the owner of the property. In some cases consent has not been forth-

coming. S-712 would authorize local boards to make these necessary tests 

with or without consent of the owner of the property. 

6. The New Jersey School Boards Association has recommended to the 

Bureau of Facility Planning Services of the State Department of Education 

that immediate attention be given to the escalating costs of school 

building construction. We reconnnend that a state-wide meeting of architects, 

educators, bonding agencies, bonding attorneys, school board members and 

contractors be called to study the problem in depth. We believe that 

through cooperative effort, cost saving ideas could be developed that 

would not reduce the safety or the functional aspects of school building 

construction. These ideas, where appropriate, could be included in State 

regulations and rules governing school construction. 

7. Similarly, we would strongly urge that every effort be made to 

strengthen the role of the State Department of Education in the area of 

research on building construction. They are making every effort t9 assist 

local districts with information and services but they are hampered by 
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less than adequate funding that limits the perlonnel that can be assigned 

to this important task. Continuing research aid evaluation would enable 

the development of the most functional buildinls at the lowest costs. 

We feel that costs of providing these services would be more than offset 

by the savings that would result. 

8. The New Jersey School Boards Association s
1 

pports all efforts to 

disseminate facility construction information ro school districts. 

Several recommendations of the Governor's Management Commission report 

dealt with methods for reducing construction cbsts. The following 

reconnnendations applied directly to school dis~ricts: 

A) Develop, publish and maintain State stlandards and specifications 

for both new construction and alteratiln and repair projects, 

B) Require greater use of common designs and building system 

techniques. 

In relation to these two points, I should like to call your· 

attention to Assembly Bill 58, a bill reqjiring the Coonnissioner 

of Education to have prepared standard bujlding plans and specifics-

tions of various types and sizes suitable for use by school districts. 

The Legislative Committee of New Jersey School Boards Association 

opposes this bill. They believe that locjl site requirements and 

esthetic considerations make such a bill Jmpractical. Research 

indicates that it often costs more to altjr a plan to fit a site 
I 
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or a program than to prepare new planaa Many recent studies 

demonstrate the importance of physical environment in student 

achievement. 

The other recommendations applicable to school dist~icts would 

appear to have validity and are worthy of consideration. That is: 

C) Establishment of a value engineering and design analysis 

function in the proposed Bureau of Design Engineering. 

D) Provide a revolving planning fund. 

E) Study the establishment of a state building authority. 

F) Establish a mandatory single-bid law for major construction 

and provide means for utilization of building systems 

construction. We believe single contract bidding would reduce 

costs and improve coordination. 

9. The New Jersey School Boards Association is concerned about the 

financial crises facing communities and school distri~ts throughout the 

State. These jurisdictions are badly in need of improvements and must 

cope with fiscal considerations that either bar them from raising money 

or cost them high interest rates they can ill afford. Older core-city 

areas, emergency-aid school districts, and rural areas are particularly 

hard hit. 

One of the most common and economical ways to raise funds for large 

capital projects is to float municipal or school bond issues. The bond 
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market is highly competitive and these poorer ci ies and school districts 
. I have the lowest credit ratings. When they borrow they must pay the 

highest interest and acCordingly their bonds carh the highest price. 

In competition with School districts and communilies with excellent credit 

::::::s~0:::s:h::t:::,a:: :::::::c~::::~:::::b:t~:ri::: ::::ef:::tt::gh-

very connnunities that are most in need of funds. A State sponsored 

School-Municipal Bond Bank would assist such jurisdictions. 

The New Jersey School Boards Association stronglu supports 

that would create a School-Municipal Bond Bank eltablished 

legislation 

by the State 

of New Jersey to buy the bonds or notes of any such municipality, county, 

or school district, with such low credit ratings that they are unable to 

sell bonds on the open market. S-858, which establishes the New Jersey 

Municipal Bond Finance Agency Law would fulfill this need. 

The Bank would be self-sustaining and would dea only in tax-exempt 

revenue bonds. The Association believes that local authorities should 

not be included in the Bond Bank since they are usually self-sustaining 

and would require a disproportionate percentage of the revenues of the 

Bank. 

The Bank would seek to save our core cities, ha ,d pressed rural areas 

and school districts from further financial detlrioration by providing -

a ready market for their bonds. The New Jersey School-Municipal Bond 
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Bank would buy the bonds or notes of those municipalities, counties and 

school districts that cannot sell in a competitive market. Thus, the 

Bank could save whoever issued the bonds hundreds of thousands of dollars 

over the life of the issue, in most cases 30 years. 

The Bank's most important function would be to provide money when and 

where it is most neededo As a result, these municipalities and school 

districts would have funds to make necessary capital improvements that 

help to increase the fiscal value of the community and to contribute to 

a higher credit rating. Eventually, this would assist in leading these 

jurisdictions back into the open bond market. Hopefully, the Bank would 

spur low-credit districts eventually to become independent of it. 

10. I should like to also call to your attention Senate Bill 267, an 
I 

act that establishes a State School Building Authority for the purpose 

of assisting local school districts in providing adequate public school 

buildings, furnishings, equipment, and related facilities. Such an 

authority would provide a measure of assistance and an alternative method 

to school districts for the provision of public school buildings. The 

authority would finance and oversee the construction of public school 

facilities. Districts would then lease the facilities from the authority. 

This mechanism would enable districts to build schools when needed rather 

than after several years of double sessions and s~vere overcrowdingo I 

will not go into the details of this proposal today, but will suggest that 

the concept is deserving of serious attention and study. 

73 



Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: From your look at the whole 

matter, do you feel that the State requirements are too 
I 

restrictive? 
Mr. Ewing, I have leen DR~ SEAMON: trying to answer 

that question as you have asked lt earlier today. I have not 
had enough direct experience with boa~ds of education to 
reall~ get a true reading on that~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well! do ydlu get many complai nt.s 
from the boards? 

DR~ SEAMON: I have not received any complaints and 
it has not been a problem that~s been discussed with me 
at the office~ I would assume that it rises when boards 
run into problems where they feel the lrequirements would 
cost them additional money~ But I thfnk, agains it 1 s a 
problem of education that the boards review more closely 
the guides and see the reasons behind this and some of 
these objections would begin to fade awaym But it has not 

I been a serious problem to my knowledge~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: On your idJa regarding the 

special features that have to be put in for the handicapped 
child, do you feel the cost of putting these in would be 
considerably less if they were kept to only a few schools 
in each district? And then what abouJ your transportation 
costs for getting the handicapped to ihose schools that had 
these and the idea that those children would not be associating 
with children from their own particular areas that they knew? 

DR ... SEAMON: •rhat is a prob+em that we would have 
to consider and we,did not want to beltoo restrictive and 
just say the one buildinge That's why I added the phrasei 
or even more at each grade level would meet those requirementso 
But our concern was that in a district with a large number 
of small elementary schools that perhaps to require these 
facllities in each and every school building, where if past 
experience were examined you might find that such a 
handicapped child did not attend that school in perhaps ten 
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years® You know perhaps some readings could be made and 
more centrally located schools could be equipped with 
these facilities~ Transportation itself would not be a 
problem~ The problem you raiseo about taking the child 
away from bis neighborhood might be a legitimate one~ But 
we feel that this bill should be examined closely to con-
sider that kind of problems 

It is my experience in a junior high schoolu for eight 
years as a teacher and administrat6ro of about between 900 
and luOOO pupils - the enrollment fluctuated - I cannot 
recall a wheelchair pupil during that eight years and I 
would suggest that this would be worth examining@ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: It 0 s also interesting to note that 
in your interpretation you interpret the bill for the 
handicapped that there would be only one public telephone in 
the whole building at a height accessible to a wheelchairw 
In the bill it has to be on every floorm 

DRo SEAMON: I have a copy of the bill® 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You interpret it the same way 

that we do® 
DR® SEAMON~ I just took that wording directly from 

the billo I didn°t see that each floor had to include itG 
Essentially on each floor it only called for the toilet 
facilitieso 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I would like to say that we in 
the Assembly Education Committee are very cognizant of the 
fact of mandating costss Howeveru we felt so strongly about 
these special facilitieso etc© for the handicapped child 
that we feel that it is a burden that should be shared by 
the people in the district and it is not one that we should 
provide the money for at alla And we did not feel badly 
about mandating these particular costs which we gathered might 
be - and here again through the best judgment we could get 
maybe 1% of the total building cost - the building cost 
would be increased by about 1% with these additional 
facilities® I don°t know if the architects feel that way 
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i 

I 
I 
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about that or not or if they ever camelup with a figure. 
Do any of you gentlemen have an~ idea as to the 

ramps, the elevator, etc? 
MRo THOMAS: Welle on a new building it would be 

I 

almost insignificant but on the adaptation to the older 

~uilding it could be very substantial®l ' 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You don°t h veto bring the older 

buildings up to this. I 

MRa SCRIMENTI: Mr® Chairmane as far as the bill is 
concerned there is only one area in thts bill that there 
might be some objection to as far as mbney is concerned 
~hich )is the question of a science shob@ But insofar as the 
remainder is concerned, the drinking ffuntain lowered is' 
no probleme the telephone loweredo no problemo the ramp 

I 

required to get into the building can be done in an aesthetic 
manner and may not cost more money~ M~ny architectso most 
architects have been doing this for mahy yearso The 
extra space involved for these facilit~es would not amount 
to too much® There is just this one exception and that is 

the one requiring laboratory and shop r' acilities in one 
area which might be an item but other han that I don°t 
think so., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Thank you v[ery much® 
DRe SEAMON: Thank youe 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Are there a y other individuals 

who wish to be heard before we hear frbl m Mr~ Spare from the 
Department? (No response) 

Dte Edward Ao Spareu Directoru (acility Planning 
Services,State Department of Education~ 
E D WA R D A., S P A R E: Mr., C airmanu I have no 
prepared statement. I just assumed ttt I would answer 
any questions you had and if you wanted me to comment on 
any of the things that have happenedo I would be very happy 
to., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle the first question thenu on 
the Guide for Schoolhouse Planningo dated 19690 is this a 
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complete compendium of everything or are there other~-
DR~ SPARE: No~ It lists everything in there that 0 s 

required by statute or by State Board regulationo and 
in addition has a series of recommendations which are not 
mandatory a~ alls 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But this does not refer back to 
any other requirements or anything? 

DR~ SPARE: Except it does indicate at certain placeso 
if you get the electric code or plumbing codeo it refers 
to either a national standard for it and the Department of 
Education did not establish any standardo they merely adopted 
a national code of fire safety prevention or plumbing or 
certain codes like ASHRAE and BOCAu certain sectionsawhich 
are national standardsm We didn°t make up any of our owns 
In most cases where there are modificationso they 0 ve been 
reductions in the requirements from national standardsu not 
exceeding them® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wella who made this up in 1969u 
what body? 

DR~ SPARE: This was the result of a two and a half 
year study® I can°t claim any of the credit for itm It 0 s 
supposedly a very nice document© At the beginning of the 
booku on page Vathere is the New Jersey Schoolbuilding Guide 
Advisory Committee and these are the people who are 
responsible for the construction of thiso which was based 
on a previous guide of 1967 and 1964, etcm It has been an 
evolutionary thingu it hasn°t been a complete changeu it is 
just constant modificationo some additions, some deletions~ 
Ando as you can seeu it 0 s a generous sprinkling of architectso 
engineerso superintendents of schoolso school board memeberso 
a couple college presidents were ono r·at that'time the 
Department was still involved in the college construction 
program,- fire chiefso businesso business manager, board 
secretarieso to get an overall reaction as to what the 
particular areas of concern were and then to compromise 
where necessary~ 
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Actuallyu certain ,things in there - we did have 
mention of one this morn~ng u the que1stion of changing 
legislative requirements ~or the mechanical systems for 
materials.. On the first page of the: Guidea item L.5do 
it specifically says, "No responsibility is assumed by the 
State Board of Education for the structural features of 
the buildingo the efficienty of the mechanical systemo the 
grade of materials or the quality of fixtures installed., 10 

There is no requirement on this~ All they specify is the 
performanceo such as you must provide 50 foot candles of 
l 1ight.. They don° t say what kind of a fixture to use., 
They can use any kind in the world that will produce that. 
The same with the ventilation® So thisu againu is up to 
the architect or eng1neer as to wpat he thinks is available .. 

ASSEJYIBLYMAN EWING: Welle do you feel that many boards 
do hide behindo oho the State requires this or that when 
actually it doesn°t? 

DR., SPARE: I think - again this is a matteru percentage-
wiseo I suppose it 0 s smalla but it seems exaggerated in our 
viewpoint because we certainly will get a call once a week 
or every other week in which somebody w1ll sayu we have to 
do something like this because the State Board mandates ito 
the Department mandates ito and there is no such mandate® 
Nowo where the information comes fromo we don°t know® Whether 
it 0 s the board hiding behind itu whether it 0 s the recommendation 
of somebody who believes this is desirable and wants to shove 
the responsibility on the Stateu but you know, just as the 
Legislature is blamed for a lot of thingso we are tooo that 
never actually occur0 

ASSEJYIBLYMAN EWING: Welle on this first pageo General 
Information, it s,ays in l., 7, 00 It is framed especially to 
present a convenient outline of all applicable mandatory 
provisions .. " An outiine, in my mindo is not a complete thing. 

DR9 SPARE~ Well, it 0 s not complete in that there 
are constant references .. It will refer to a State law and 
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the entire law may not be printed in herea or to some other 
source~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle how long would it take to 
redo this, by somebody in your officea to include the 
laws, not make it an outline? I meano for a layman like 
myself to be able to go through it properly instead of 
having to go back to reference books and back and forth® 

DRe SPARE: I think that the size of it would be -
and the architects can tell you better than I couldu but 
I would say that you would at least increase this five-fold 
in size. And it 0s questionable whether it isn°t too 
lengthy now as a source of reference because the architects 
work with it and the engineers® They are familiar with 
these other codes -and they have the books for it~ Some, 
of them are-complete sets of volumes which you would have 
to refer to® And I think the reproduction would lose a 
lot this way® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I see. Wello in any of those 
areas a do you have complaints from the architectse that, 
maybe they should be revised? 

DRe SPARE: I think this is continual® I don°t think 
there is any high degree of complaintm But with any 
publication or any piece of information put auto you can 
see the weaknesses as soon as it 0 s published0 We try to 
change these® For instanceu we 0 ve had complaints from 
architects and engineers that the requirements for the 
ventilation were too high$ We made a thorough check of it@ 
The Guide Advisory Committee just completed a recommendation 
for a downward revision which would reduce the costm We hope 
to have this before the State Board of Education at the 
June meeting to see if they will approve the reduced require-
ments in ventilations 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wella when did you start going 
into this reduced requirement for ventilation? This yearo 
last yeara five years ago? 

DRo SPARE: I would say probably about six or eight 
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months ago. That 0 s how long we studied the situation and 
investigated ite 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And the State Board has to approve 
that. 

DR~ SPARE: Yes. Because they had to approve this 
whole guide, as it standso to make it enforceable® 

Also on S-182, the physically handicappedo we have 
also sent to the Commissioner and State Board an amplification 
of those six items in the legislation because we know that 
clarification is needed in what the requirements would be. 
For instance, the rampo It says a ramp at the principal 
entrance, but what kind of a grade should it have. We 
went to the American Standards Association for the physically 
handicapped to see what they would recommend and then we're 
incorporating this is our recommendsation that the grade 
should not be more than one foot in twelve. These are some 
of the things that we had to explore and we again, accoFding 
to our interpretation, that is our Bureau, we believe the 
State Board of Education will have to approve this clarifi-
cation of the different items, as to how high a telephone 
should be or a drinking fountainu because it 0 s not specified 
in the legislation~ And this will be a guide to the persons 
who are involved in planning so that they will know how high 
it should bes 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: 'Wellu were you advised that 
Senate 182 was being developed and were you consulted on it 
or not? 

DRe SPARE: Yes~ I attendedo I believeu two short 
conference sessions with some of the sponsors of the 
legislation, together with many representatives from the 
Red Cross and other associations involved in the handicappeda 
and the determination was made generally as to how or what 
were the most important items that would keep the cost down 
to a minimum and still achieve some of these thingse 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But the details of it are better 
done by administrative procedureo would you sayo in the 

80 



Department rather than-putting them in the .bill? 
DRe SPARE: I think just the clarification of what 

they mean~ There would be a lot of question, let 0 s sayu 
for a drinking fountain at a suitable height for a 
wheelchair. Well 0 there may be a lot of differences 
between the architects, the school administrators and 
board members as to how high that should be~ So we went 
directly to the American Standards Association°,s recom-
mendation because they are involved in this directly~ 
It 0 s not a detailed sheet of explanationG 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you feel there is a 
way to cut the costs in school construction or don°t you 
feel they can be cut? 

D~8 SPARE: I think there 0 s a possibility of it 
being cutm I don°t agree with some of the testimony that 
the systems approach is going to be the answer~ I spent 
some time last October visiting schools in California-not 
at State expense, incidentally, it was at my own expense -
to see about their open space rules and their systems 
con~truction~ Of course, the original SCSD program started 
in CaliforniaQ They had so many problems with it - actually, 
there were two other states that built buildings under that 
system before California moved in on it, but we have never 
seen any indication of a reduced caste I think it achieves 
a lot of things0 It achieves a lot of flexibility in the 
buildingm I think it allows for a lot of thingso open space 
that we couldn°t have had because of utilities being placed 
in such dimensions in the building that it would restrict 
in some way the ~ducational opportunitiess But I don°t 
see it as a re~uction yeta It has possibilitiesm 

There are a lot of these thingsm As you know, we had 
this workshop on systems and preengineered structuresm The 
thing that we seem to be able to justify so far is that these 
systems and preengineering will allow a saving of time from 
the time the plan is initiated until it 0 s occupiede But again 0 

if you 0 re going out to bid on these things, once the bid is 
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firrneda if it takes six months or a ,year longer than was 
anticipated, it still doesn°t cost the district any more 
in construction cost because it is a firm cost originally~ 
So that ish 0 t where the saving would beo 

But one thing that I think is missingo and I 0 rn 
not proposing this for empire building and it doesn°t 
necessarily have to be in our Bureauu although we would 
like ito is the fact that there is ~o State approach to 
any research as to how this can be doneo how can we save 
money® There is no personnelu no time allowance for this 
to be strictly a study group to try to explore this topic0 
We depend upon the Foundationso the associationso such as 
the Society of Architectsa Engineerso such as the Council 
of Educational Facilities Plannersa and other groups like 
this to do the researche I think it has been neglected 
a great deala There isn°t any money~ It 0 s purly some 
voluntary committee doing ite 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello are other states doing this? 
DRe SPARE: Not to my knowledge® I don°t know of 

anyone who is studying it~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello is there such an associationo 

of the title you hold or something similar to ito other 
individuals from the other 49 states? 

DR~ SPARE: The major association is the Council 
of Educational Facilities Planners0 They do a tremendous 
job but any research that is done is done strictly on a 
voluntary basis of the Committeeu which is part time® It's 
like, I 0 ve just been appointed to a committee of six personso 
three representing that organizationo in which we have to 
develop a plan for a model state agency for the opration 
of the Bureau of Facility Planning to see how it can be 
improved~ Welle I am having three days of orientation at 
the headquarters at Ohio State Universityo but the six man 
committee is going to do this all on their own time and then 
make a report0 And this is only one phase~ They do research 
in economies the same way~ And when you have a committee of 
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a half dozen people who are going to meet three or four times 
a year and working independently and making a report a year 
later, I question the validity of howo you knowo efficient 
such a study is when you consider the research that goes in 
for cancer or heart worke Staffs are working all the time 
in order to accomplish anythingID I think maybe even a one 
or two year study by the Stateo not necessarily for schools 
but just a committeeo a permanent committee for a couple 
of years of staff that would study how savings can be 
effected in construction may produce something a lot better 
than this diversification of effort and fundse 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I gathered earlier this morning 
that the information regarding school districts! what they 
pay for a final buildingo etce o is held by your officeo 
you get that infonnation? 

DRc SPARE~ Basically that 0 s true~ Unfortunately 0 

it is not~an accurate reflectione What happens iso the 
law requires that they file the contracts with uso the 
major contractso within ten days after they have signed~ 
They file the contracts but these are the five basic 
contracts only@ There are many other things like equipment 
that goes in lateru even kitchen equipment, closets for 
storageg different things8carpeting may go in later ono 
bleachers may come ino even chairs in an auditoriums 
The land is not involved in that costQ The architectural 
fees are not in thereo the legal fees~ Change orders are 
constantly increasing costo We never know what the final 
cost is~ There is no actual record® We had hoped at one 
time to try to develop this but we seem to have difficulty 
even getting them to file the contracts which the law requires 
them to file® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, what do you do with the 
information you do get? 

DR~ SPARE: We have that on file and thatas availableo 
We compile for use in our own department a list of what the 
square foot cost is of each project during the past fiscal year 
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and weo from thato judge or work out what the average square 
foot cost is throughout the State for public schoolsm We 
are now trying to break it down into regions to find out 
what would be suitable regions because there is a variation 
of cost depending on the area of the State® And it 0 s not 
good to reflect a cost of say $26.,00 a square foot when 
it may be 20% less in South Jersey ~nd 40% higher in North 
Jersey., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well the ,information you do geto 
do you disseminate this to the coun~y superintendents so 
that they have it on file there? 

DRe SPARE: No~ We keep it available for anyone 
who wants to look at it but there are a lot of other 
problems because you 0 re comparing apples and oranges, 
unfortunately., 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: You@re what? 
DR., SPARE: There isn°t any comparable basis that 

the facts that are submitted are square foot cost, the 
total cost of a projecte And people will look at it and 
sayo what is the per pupil cost? One school is costing 
$3,000 per pupila another one is $50000~ Why is that? 
Welle the difference is that one of them was a complete 
building~ It had corridor lockers in it, it had floor 
finishes in ito it had bleachers in the gymnasium and 
seats in the auditoriumo so that when we look at it we 
don°t know how much of this when they look at a figure 
they don°t know whether one is a complete building, whether 
one is minimum construction or the most economical kind, 
whereas otherso as the architects have mentionedo were 
looking toward reduced maintenance in the future® They 
may have terrazzo corridors because 20 years later they 
may be exactly the same as they were when they were installed: 
whereaso they may have an asphalt tile corridor which every 
three or, four years needs pieces of it replaced@ So the 
cost of one building may be substantially more than another .. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But don 1 t you think the County 
Superintendent could pick up a phone and call some other 
area and say, 18 I see, George, you built a building last 
year and your costs were way down, what are you doing? 11 

or your costs were way up, or somethingo I don't see, if 
you 8 re getting the information from the people in the State, 
why it is not disseminated back to the county superintendents 
so that those who are interested in doing a job in their 
county will keep abreast of what the building climates are 
and keep in touch with the board0 And I also don't see 
why you permit some boards to turn in, as you say, a 
complete building cost, including the bleachers and --

DR~ SPARE: No one does thato 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ Welle you just said some might run 

to $50000 per pupil and others $3,000, and the $5,000 because 
it had lockers in the hall and the bleachers and things 
of this nature,, 

DR~ SPARE~ But if you look at a sheet which fairly 
lists the different projects, the schools that were builto 
the square foot cost, it will have the total cost, it will 
have the square foot cost, it will have the number of square 
feet in that building, and then you look at one which is 
$27s00 a square foota another one $22000 a square foot, and 
you sayo looko this one was built cheaper, why can't we do 
that onec But you don°t know what went into that building, 
it 0 s not on that sheet, and nobody knows except by looking 
at the exact plan of what was put in there, what kind of 
lighting was put in, what kind of a ventilating system, 
was it air conditioned or wasn°t ito So they are looking 
at a figure and they see the next door neighbor got it for 
$18~00 a square foot and this architect is telling us $27000 
a square footo we don 1 t want this architectm And that's 
not true~ This architect could probably build it for $18~00 
a square foot if he built the same kind of building that 
the dther man built0 There is no genius, I mean, in getting 
bids® The bids come in and the man knows the low bidder is 
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the one who gets it, by law~ So the design has an effect® 
There is no question about it~ But there is such a 
di~ference in what they·provide in there. One district 
may build a school building which is nothing but classrooms 
and corridors~ the classrooms are a 9 foot 6 minimum heighta 
the corridors are 8 foot in height8 and his square foot cost 
is somethinge Another districto besides supplying for the 
same number of childrena we 0 11 sayo will supply the classrooms 
and corridors but he will have a library whic~, instead of 
a 9 foot 6 ceiling will have a 14 foot ceilinge 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING:' Yes, but couldn°t some of these 
facts be found out by making a phone call. The superintendent 
looking at it says the XYZ districto ! 0 11 give them a ring 
and see what they dido and he would find out these facts. 

DR& SPARE: Well, it sounds like the right way to do 
it6 Unfortunately, we tried to track do"Wn a few districts 
where they had an exceptionally low cost to find out what 
it was, and we can°t get the information from themm Either 
the man who had the information is no longer there or they 
can°t find it or they don't want to reveal ito whatever it 
is, and there 8 s nothing in the law which mandates them 
to supply this~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you need that? Would it be a 
help to you? 

DR~ SPARE: It sure would be to have the total cost 
of the project when it 0 s completedu to have that filed with 

) 

the State, itemizing the costs of the different items in 
there which would then reflect what the school district is 
getting for its money and then there could be a comparison6 
a reasonable comparisone 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wello have you ever made a request 
that something like that be mandated? 

DR& SPARE: Nom We 0 re still trying to get the districts 
to do what the law now requires them to do, which we have 
difficulty inu such as the one which requires the filing of 
reports on the performance of contractorse When I took 
over five years ago as Director of the Bureau, we were getting 
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returns of less that 2% on what was required by law® We 0 ve 
been sending out letters with each plan-approvale We refer 
to the citation in the law and say that it 0 s mandatory that 
they complys We follow up with letters when they donat 
comply~ Over a period of years we 0ve worked it up to lOo 20 
and now we 0 re up to somewhere around 35 or 40% returno which 
is still horriblee 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well why this lack of cooperation? 
Do they feel it 0 s too much administration for them to do? 

DRe SPARE: First of allo we had a problem in which 
they were afraid of libel suitso and then we had a save-harmless 
act by the Legislature, which is about two years ago or 
three years ago which protected the boardsa They were 
afraid to report because they were afraid that contractors 
on an unfavorable report would sue themo Then the school 
districts would assign this to the architect after that and 
sayo you file it® Well, the architect said thato in essenceo 
the save-harmles,s legislation does not protect men it only 
protects the school boardso so they didn°t want to file it~ 
Now I believeo I donut knowo you gentlemen can tell me, I 

think there is legislation introduced to provide that for 
the architect as well? 

MRQ SCRIMENTI: Not yets 
DRe SPARE: Not yAt but you 0 re working on ita 
MRa SCRIMENTI: Not yeto Mre Chairmans An amendment to 

this bill that Dre Spare is talking about was proposed which 
included that the architects be held harmless9 This was 
rejected and only the Board of Education was held harmless. 
On that basis I 0m advisedo don°t fill out the form because 
it seems clear that if the board of education is held 
harmless and the architect will not be held harmless they 
can sue our pants offm And this is why we are not doing ite 
We are saying, if you want information on the contract on 
this projecto you refer to the minutes of the meetingsthat 
we had every two weeks and that will tell you who caused 
delaysm Howeveru if the architects are held hannlesso as the 
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boards of education are, we would fill out those forms~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you know what chapter that is 

that held the boards harmless? 
DRo SPARE: Noo offhand I don°to but I could check 

that~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you feel some benefit could 

be derived by having the total cost of everything and making 
this available? 

DRe SPARE: The total cost would certainly helpe 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And then 'would you disseminate 

that back to county superintendentsor not? 
I 

DR® SPARE: Wello the county 'superintendents - there 
was mention here and there is a difference of opinion on 
the involvement of county superintendents. I think the 
architects are not quite aware of the full involvement 
of the county superintendents~ So far as I knowo almost 
every plan th~t is ever presented to Trenton for approval 
has been reviewed by a county superintendent. But he works 
not with the architecte he works with the local administrator 
and with our office~ As a matter of facto we had two calls 
this morning from county superintendents alerting us 
about plans that were coming in which they thought were 
horrible and they wanted to sit down and talk with us before 
we made any decision on theme 

The County Superintendents are constantly requesting 
the services of our Bureau to sit down with local boards when 
they are planning somethingo to get involved and to assist 
them in the early stages® Unfortunatelyo one of the problems 
is that in some districts they go ahead on their own before 
the County Superintendent even knows that they are planning 
a school buildingo and he doesn°t know about it until we 
notify him because when a plan is received by our district 
he automatically gets a form which acknowledges the receipt 
of that plan and that 0 s when he usually gets involved with 
the district~ Sometimesa of courseo the plans have been 
crystalized so far that he can°t do anything about it if he 
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thinks they could ~e improved upon9 
But againo to get back to that performance reporting 

on contractorso when we follow upo after a series of letters 
we make personal calls to the district and say the law 
requires that you file these, - now, on the performance of 
the contractors they sayo wellu how do we files we don°t 
knows the architect is the one who worked with themo we 
don°t know how they performed. Well, as Mr~ Scrimenti just 
saido I meano many times they 0 re on the records of the 
minutes where the architect has complained© We don°t seem 
to be able to get that voluntarily= It becomes almosto you 
knowa a method of extracting it through torture or some 
other way~ I don°t know how you do ite 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Wellu do you feel the cou~ty 
superintendent should be notified when a district is starting 
to plan? 

DR& SPARE: I think that 0 s most importants 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: I would think so but --
DR@ SPARE: Yes® We always advise school districts 

when we have conferences or workshops or anythingo we always 
tell them this is the starting point, because he can contact 
the State Department of Education for the resource people 
that they may wantu if they want anyu to help them in the 
planning process® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Nowu in talking to the gentlemen 
from East Windsor at lunchtime, the geodesic dome and things, 
and the way they went about doing their job down thereu -
is this broad knowledge now throughout the State as to how 
they operated on that particular project? 

DRo SPARE: Well 0 I don°t think that was new© I mean, 
it 0 s been around for yearso it just has never been used in 
New Jerseys The same thing with systemsm I think the 
architects have been aware of systems building for years~ 
I meanu if they saw tremendous advantages to ito I am sure 
they would utilize itu as MrQ Meyer believes it has a lot 
of potential and hens utilizing it® Now the results, as he 
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continuesa to see whether it achieves what he hopes it will, 
is another thing which we have to wa1i t till the future to 
find out® 

In some of the systems approaches - and it happens 
that r 0m going downo next weeko to spend the week in the 
State of Florida to look at the NOVA systems installation 
and discuss with the people in Tallahasseeo in the State 
Department of Educationo their reaction to what they have 
achievedu because a lot of things get a lot of publicity 

\ 

and advert£sing but when you check into them they are not 
always - only the good points are put forwardo you have to 
find out what the deficiencies are for yourself® And this 
the Commissioner asked me to do because of his involvernent0 
The majority of the costa incidentally, is coming from the 
Ford Foundatione EFLu and not from the Statee 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yesu but you say what East Windsor 
has done or the general method they used in getting it done 
has not been used in the State but elsewhere® But r think 
it has brought to the peopie 0 s attention in the State that 
it might alert them to look furtherm 

DR~ SPARE: The question is whether that is everything 
that 0 s it claimed to be® We 0 re primarily talking about a 
quality building at a reduced cost® r 0m not sure that the 
geodesic dome has done more than any other type of con-
struction would have done., If you go in and look at the 
building and examine ito I meano you have to evaluate the 
caliber and quality of the construction against some other 
type of construction® You could have built it cheapero 
I O m certain o if you wanted to., You could have built it more 
expensively tooo still using the geodesic domeg That 0 s 
only one form of covering over the roof., Right now they 
are exploring a lot of things., The EFLo the Educational 
Facilities Laboratoryo is right now very much interested in 
inflated structuresa We 0ve had those around-for a number of 
years in the countryu the nylon type of covering inflated 
air supported., And recently DuPont has done a lot of teflon 
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type of covering~ In the World Fair in Tokyo the American 
building ther~, the United States building,was a partially 
air supported glass fiber roofing which presents a different 
type of potentialo And all of these are things which1 
unfortunat·ely, no one to my knowledge is exploring outside 
of some of the foundations and some associations who are doing 
it on a very limited basiso I don 1 t think anyone has really 
cracked down on how we can build buildings more inexpensivelyo 
Of courseu the problem of labor is always something that 
I don° t think, a.s, ·a State Department of Education o we I re 
able to do much abouta 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ What is your feeling on the 
statute about the prevailing wage? 

DR~ SPARE~ Well, I think I would have to say I 
have mixed feelings with ito Certainly it achieves some-
things.which I think basically the purpose of it was to 
prevent people from being forced to work at sJnave labor 
in bad timeso when the economy is bad and they need a job 
and they~re willing to work for less than what a union price 
would be or whatever the established fee is in that par-
ticular fieldo 

Howevero as mentioned beforeu with the constant 
upward swing in wage rates for the mechanical trades and 
other unions'in the construction field, the generaly pre-
vailing wage seems to almost parallel what the unions 
are 'requiringo So it may be that everytime we get that 
cycle again the prevailing wage will go ups And certainly 
in certain areas of the State it's almost impossible to do 
anything that,,. s non-union, even if they wanted to"' So it 
does control the priceo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ What is the first step when a 
school district does plan a new school? Do they send you 
schematic drawings first? 

DR~ SPARE~ Thatis the first stage that we're involved 
ina unless in some cases - and we have an increasing number 
of those - school districts, when they're starting they will 
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call the county superintendent or our office and say, 
we 0 re planning a building, can we have a planning con-
ference just to sit down and generally discuss what steps ' 
we should take~ 

We also have a number of architects who, when they 
are hired to do a job, recommend to ,the board, first, letss 
sit down with the State Department of Education~ the 
Facilities Planning Bureau or the county superintendent or 
persons involved and have a round table discussion' as to 
what we should be alerted to, what are the things that we 
should be doing, how can we do the job better. and this 
has been increasings 
advance of anything. 

We're getting more requests in 
But technically and still in the 

majority of cases, the first time we ever know that the 
school district is doing anything is when they submit the 
schematic plan to USe 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: At that time there is not too 
much money involved in the schematic planningu or is there? 

DR~ SPARE: They have established the costo Part 
of the submission of the schematic plan is the cost estimate, 
what the whole proJect will costs 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But I mean, the time and money that 
they have involved in it is not that tremendous, is it? 

DRe SPARE: Noo 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Then when you get schematic 

plans, sometimes do you say no, this is ridiculous on the 
overall maintenance problem, etcG? 

DR~ SPARE: No~ because at that stage we don't know 
what materials are going to be used0 All we're talking about 
now --

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, I 1 m thinking more - I don't 
know whether Iim using the right words or not but more of 
the campus styleo where they have different buildings and 
corridors connecting them, etc~ 

DR. SPARE: Well, yesz we examine the plan to see 
if there is an excess amount of, space used for circulation 
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that could bet~er be used for educational purposes, or if 
there are any wasteful ideas~ I mean there are certain 
things that over the years - many years ago they used to 
always design an auditorium with dressing rooms in the 
back, one for boys and one for girlsr with toilet facilities 
and sinks and everything, and over a period of years we 
constantly would try to discourage them from-doing any such 
thing because they would use them a half dozen times a year 
at mostQ At the end of a year or two, they would temporarily 
use them for storage and then they got so filled they didntt 
wart to use the stuff@ So all this expensive construction 
really be9ame a storage room, with air conditioning and 
ventilation in it, and we would say for dressing rooms you 
could very well use one of the classrooms across the 
corridor, and toilet facilities are designed to be placed 
near the auditorium anyhowo 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But they can still go ahead and 
do what they want to~ 

DR•.. SPARE~ Oh, yes, they can do whatever they 
wanto But generally they will listen to youo And I say 
this, the administratib~ generally, of school districts are 
very receptive to anything that they think makes senseo 
And the architects have been increasingly helping us in the 
battle because they fight at the local level, despite the 
fact that probably their relationship is jeopardized by 
saying that •Mwe think th.1.s is the wrong thing to do, now you 
can check with the State Department but we believe that this 
should be this way instead,," And it helps., I think we 1 re 
getting better schools, we~re getting less waste space 
in schools than we used to have~ Actually, we figure there 
was a time, not too many years ago, when they would figure 
out the total number of instructional areas they would need 
and the square footage and they~a get that all totaled up, 
with the offices and everything they needed, and then they 
would add 40% which would include toilet rooms. storage and 
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circulation corridorsa The architects have worked it out 
now that it~s closer to about 25%, in some places 20%i and 
some of them where they go to open space they've eliminated 
almost all of the corridors and this square footage is now 
being used for educational purposese 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING~ When you say open space, do you 
mean outdoors? 

DR. SPARE~ No! a building such as the geodesic dome 
one on which Dre Hunt was going to testify~ There axe no 
corridors inside except the minimum ones coming into the 
lobby and stairwelle There are no walls insideg People 
move back and forths So all the space is used for the 
children and the educational programo You donLt have 
corridors going from one place to anotherc 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you ever go to the extent of 
writing, you representing the State, saying the plan that 
has been proposed to us is such that we feel there ought 
to be changes made? 

DR.~ SPARE: Yes<> 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you write to the boards 
themselves or do you do it through the architects? 

DR., SPARE: Noo Well the letter is directed to ,,, 
the architecto he is the man submitting the plan, but the 

q carbon copy of that same letter goes to the superintendent 
of schools, to the board secretary of that district, and 
to the county superintendent of schoolse So they are all 
aware of our comments on ita 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Rightc Who establishes the 
criteria for the safety and health of the child? 

DRe SPARE: Well, that's in the Guide. You mean 
so far as the building is concerned? 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yes., In other words, how much 
air, etc. 

DRe SPARE: Well that, againa is an evolutionary 
process from earlier guides in which it•s modified in 
terms of modern days because ten years ago the guide had 
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no specifications for air conrlitioningQ Anyone who air 
conditioned a building did it on his owno So today they 
specify what they should haveo So this changes ito The 
guide in 1967 had nothing about the open space concept so 
in there it now has a provision, minimum in nature but it 
still states something about ito 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yes, but what I don't understand1 
as I gather we have manyo many very old buildings in the 
State and they are still educating childreno Do you have 
concrete facts to show that children coming out of those 
old! old buildings are not educated to the level they should 
be because they are not getting the light and the air, et~® 
that are now in the minimum standards? 

''DR~ SPARE: Noe I don 1 t think anyone could validate 
that an~ it may not be true at all~ But I think some of 
these things are almost empirical from our own experiencesa 
For instanceu we feel that we can work on a hot day better 
in an air conditioned office than if weAre perspiring and 
felt uncomfortableo And whether children can learn better 
under this situationo or not1 is questionable, but it seems 
to make senseo The same thing with the light level~ If 
you'try to read by a poor lamp, you may learn as much - the 
kid may' learn as much until he 1 s 20 or 25 years of age but 
then it may affect his eyesight thereaftero These are 
some of 'the thingso And some of the things with health in 
it is the fact that a child must be within 120 foot of 
some way of getting out of the buildingo Now, who 
established that originally, I don't knowe Maybe 150 feet 
would be just as goodu or maybe it should be 80 feet instead~ 
But someplace a cutoff was established by persons who were 
involved in national standards which said for safety things 
these things should be doneo And the same thing - the guide 
says you cannot have a deadend corridor where somebody would 
in an emergency rush down to the end and find that the 
corridor has no way out and then he has to retrace his steps 
in maybe smoke or fire in order to get out9 These are some 
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of the things which a private school in the State of New 
Jersey does not have to adhere to these standards of the 
State~ They may have such things which you may be able to 
construct cheaper because you don!t have as many doors 
getting out and you don't have the fireproof stairwells 
that are required, if itis a multistory buildinge Some 
of these are things that are involved in the safetyQ 

The same thingf for instanceu with toilet roomsQ 
The guide requires an impervious floor of some kind so 
that you don~t have odors permeating or soaking into the 
cement floore Now a private school doesn~t have to do that 
if it doesn°t want to~ And you can do it cheapere You 
don§t have to have mechanical ventilation exhausting in 
the toilet rooms or bringing fresh air in~ You can save 
money if you don£t have thato 

So it is possible to build a schoola a private 
school or a nonpublic school in New Jersey, at reduced 
rates if you want to make these sacrifices, if you think 
they're sacrificese I think, though, that most of the 
private schools do try to follow regulations in many 
cases, or as close as possible~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, the standards that have 
been set up in New Jerseyc in the book here, how do they 
compare with other states? 

DR~ SPARE: Wellu I think generallyo as far as I 
have been able to gather at the national sessions, our code 
is considered about the bestQ At one time we had, I think1 
seven different universities that were using this in their 
graduate courses in school plant planning as the text or as 
a model of it~ And the other things that we developed - we 
developed two years ago, last yearo a school capacity bulletin 
which enabled districts to figure out what the capacity of 
their building is based on the different rooms that they have, 
and so fortho and the size of theme And we had two states 
that requested permission to reprint it exactly as it is 
and use it for their own state department standards. And 
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actuallyo we had a call yesterday from the State of 
Florida which wanted information of this kind and they 
contacted the New York State Department of Education and 
they said we were the only state in the country that had 
thise 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: The capacity? 
DR~ SPARE: Yeso And this helps in the planning of 

a buildinge 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you have any requirements or 

do you make sure in going over the plans that the specifi-
cations are not geared for only one manufacturer to bid on an 
item or a system or something? 

DR. SPARE: Yes, the guide review men are very 
particular about thate 

ASSEMB~YMAN EWING: How big a staff do you actually 
have over there? 

DR~ SPARE: Welle we have diversification of three 
different operationss We have four educational consultants 
who are of the advisory nature without any authority, but 
they are reviewing the plans and telling them that this 
could be done better, or that, and so forth and so on1 and 
trying by persuasion to get them to do what we believe is 
the better thing, if they see something is wronge 

We have four architectural review men who review 
plans to see that they comply with the guide$ That;s 
at the preliminary and final stages. They are not involved 
in the educational adequacy~ The educational approval has 
been granted first at the schematic levele And then we have 
a man w~o is involved in the classification of contractors 
which is also part of our Bureau operation~ Then we have 
an ass,istant director and an architectural supervisor and 
secretarial staff, with a total staff of 20 including the 
Directore 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, what was this one position 
in the budget? There was another person you wanteda wasn't 
there? 

97 



DR~ SPARE: We have a probiem in reviewing the plans, 
the final plans particularly, when they"re getting them 
ready to go out for bid, in which there had been delaysJ 
undue delays at times, because of the pressure of the number 
of plans coming in at one timea There is no even distribution, 
you know, over the yeara Sometimes you get a lot at one 
time and what happens is, a plan comes in and it may have 
been four or five or six weeks, or at one time, seven or 
eight years ago back, we were at a stage where it was twelve 
weeks before a reviewer would even pick up a plan to look 
at it~ And with four men doing it, if you get a large high 
school; a man may work two or three weeks on one single 
plan because he has to check every specification of 
hardwareJ width of corridors: ceiling height, the type of 
fixture. whether it provides the lighting requirements, and 
the'vent1lation and other things of 'this naturem 

Now we had at one time seventeen final plans come 
in on one day~ This suddenly jams you upe So we had 
calculated - at different times we had men working over-
time and we pay them of course1 'according to State rules, 
time and a half 'for that work plus for their evening mealo 
and the men don 1 t want to do it because it is close work 
and they are work'ing a full day on it and it I s very tiring 
to work two or three nights overtime on this thinge We 
had calculated that we could save - again, as Mr. Scrimenti 
mentionedu if you're talking about a 1% escalation in cost 
per month, for each month that we got the plans out sooner 
we would be able to save the district 1% of the total cost 
of the project, and we felt that with one additional plan 
reviewer we would have a better control of this situation. 
And on.our documentation we estimated that we could save 
at least three-quarters of a million to one-half million 
a year to the local taxpayer at a cost of $15,000 to the' 
State. But~ as rou know, it was knocked out of the budgetQ 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, I think it probably wasn~t 
presented properly to the Appropriations Committee or the 
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people and nobody really fought for it. Because if you 
could document the savingo it seems incredible. That 0 s 
why we were so annoyed on the floor of this House that 
the bill for having prepared plans made up, the fiscal note 
was around $2 milliono yet the Assembly approved that but 
the other people had cut out the $15uOOOQ 

DRe SPARE: Never question the wisdom of a legislators 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What is your general feeling on 

the ~easing situation? 
DR. SPARE: I think it has a lot of potentiale I 

think we have a lot of bugs in it becauseg as mentioned 
previously in other testimony, we would have to change, I 
thinko some related laws to it because, under the way it 
exists now, first of alla thereis no competitive biddinge 
I'm certain that maybe some of these schools that they 
contract for under leasing might be able to be obtained 

I 

at less cost with competitive bidding~ Another thing is 
that we have no way of inspecting these buildings because 
most of them we 0ve had have been built at the factory, 

) 

brought in on trailers and just assemblede We can't get 
into the wall to see whether the wiring is according to 
the plan which we approveda whether the utilities - if 
they specify copper piping, whether it has copper pipinge 
There is no way of checking these things® And I think that 
presents a problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Excuse meo just a minute, for 
interruptinge Lease buildings they also build without 
having them prefabricated, don°t they? 

DR. SPARE: We 0 ve had a few of thoseo yes, and those 
have been inspected with the exception of oneuwhich you may 
be aware of, which was a little bit of a probleme It may be 
an excellent building but we have no way of knowinge Only 
time will tell whether it will stand up, whether they 9 re 
going to have problems with the wiring or plumbing or 
other things. 

But leasing has a lot of potential~ But I think with 
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A-4~7o it may present a problem becauseo as I think Mrm 
Corda indicated todayo he was questioning the fact that 
when you lease - and he puts the annual cost in his 800 
account as part of the operational costo and he ..questions 
the decision of the Division of Local Finance which said 
that this must be, in essenceq estimated in their capital 

( 

responsibility of debt payment because actually the system 
has to pay for it whether it 0 s please or whether it 0 s 
a capital project. And the ability of a district to pay 
for it should be part of the consideration© If they get 
too far into debto because the law allows them to, we may 
have some problems© And under A-477a I don°t see any 
provision for that because they need no approval except 
maybe - what it sayso approval of State Department of 
Educationo that might mean the approval of plansm I 0 m 
not quite certain what it meanse But it doesn 8 t allow for 
local fin~nce in ther~~ 

Buto of courseo as far a~ leasing is concerneda you 
know the same building they 0 re purchasing now under a 
bonding issue could ju~t as well be leased. I meano ,they 
could have it approved that way for leasingo i,n payment 
that wayo the same way~ Actuallyo we had one school district 
which just a few months ago went through a referendum to 
buy and to bond for a school which they really intend to 
acquire through five years of leasing~ But what they are 
doing under the amended lawse they don°t have to sell their 
bonds for five years~ So they are going to get temporary 
financing from a local bank and pay it out in five annual 
installments and they 0 11 never have to sell their bonds® 
Soo in essenceo they are leasing® There are all kinds of 
ingenious methods for doing thism 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: But then the taxpayers of that 
community are paying for a school in five years timee 

' \ \ ( l I 

DR~ SPARE: Rightm This is the same thing as the 
I 

short-term leasing~ The tax impacta as we mentioned befpre, 
is much greater® And right now - I haven°t heard any of 
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the citizens objecting but I would think they woulde I 
think I would if I were involved in a district that did ite 

ASSEMBLY.MAN EWING: Wellu if you planned to live there 
the rest of your lifeo you wouldn°t because it 0 s going to 
cost the community less, I would imaginee 

DR& SPARE: If I were a little youngere 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yeso but up in Parsippany-Troy 

that 0 s the one I was talking aboute I think it 0 s 
Parsippany-Troy. 

DRo SPARE: Hopatcong~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Hopatcong~ There they put up 

the building and didn°t have any purchase agreement on ite 
Right? 

DRe SPARE: They had a lease. 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: A lease of five years but nothing 

to do about the purchase. 
DRe SPARE: No. But we 0 ve told them in the past and 

I think they can overcome that easily enougha I think, if 
their board attorney would phrase the contract in such a 
way that at the end of the five years it would be donated 
to the scho0l board as a gift instead of having to purchase 
it for $1~00e Then the school board just has to pass a 
resolution accepting the gift® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Yeso but they still circumvented 
the voters though~ 

DR® SPARE: Yese And then again, there was no 
prevailing wage involved theres 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: And that 0 s why they got it for 
so much lesse 

DR~ SPARE: Well, actuallyu the cost wasn°te That 0 s 
the amazing thinge 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: It wasn°t? 
DRo SPARE: No~ Of course, they 0ve argued the point 

with us but I don°t see any material reduction, reallye 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well certainly the time element 

was there. 
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DRe SPARE: Right~ Actuallye that same school dis-
trict came in yesterdaye We had a conference and a very 
amicable discussion® They want to put up a new building and 
they said they wanted to be sure that they followed the laws 
~ompletely. And I think as a result of our worksho~ in 
Cherry Hill they found out the same thing was done by two 
other districtsa what they dida following all the required 
procedureso plans approved and everything involved, and 
the time element of construction was approximately the samee 

l 

So it can be done that way just as wellm 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, is'n at it a fact they are 

building another school alreadyo aren°t they, that isn't 
ready yet? 

DRe SPARE: Yes. They 0 re having some problemse They 
started with that in 1965 and it 0 s not finished yet. So 
this one didn°t work out so well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Well, do you get many boards 
coming down and a 7guing about certain requirements that 
they do not feel are necessary? 

DR ... SPARE: No 1 we donwt" We have situations where 
there have been honest differences of opinion in interpre-
tation of part of the guide and we 0 ve always seemed to be 
able to resolve it® I don°t know of any situat~on - of courseo 
I think Mr® Scrimenti testified -- of courseo he made it 
easier for us because whenever he ran into conflict he just 
saidu okayo I won°t do it the other wayo instead of appealing 
its Of courseu if he hadu maybe we would have made changes 
in the guide as a result~ if we find out weffre wrongo because 
we are modifying it constantly through the Guide Advisory 
Cammi ttee-® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What do you think of this idea 
of a board of appeals? It has come up several times todaye 

DRe SPARE: Wello the ideau per se~ seems to be 
excellent except under the Administrative Procedures Act 
you have an appeal situation now and I don°t know whether 

, ' 

a board of appeals would work any quicker just because it 
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has that titlea And the recommendation of what the 
composition of that board of -appeals should be is almost 
identical to what our Guide Advisory Committee is now .. 
And whe~ there is an appealo we present it to them and ask 
for an opinion before we move farther with it.. So r--think 
the procedure is there already. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: How often does the advisory group 
meet? 

DR8 SPARE: Technically we 0 re,supposed to meet four 
times a year. They 1 ve been eager beavers and they've 
been meeting about once a month and the subcommittees are 
meeting every couple of weeks. And whenever an emergency 
comes up, they are more than willing to meet~ I don 1 t 
think that 0 s a problem® Of courseo maybe an established 
board of appeals which would have a regular.o for instance, 
monthly meetingo such as the State Board of Education, or 
a weekly meeting like the Division of Local Finance has, 
would certainly expedite any complaint. And I think that is 
where the advantage would be. But as far as I have been able 
to see, I have never run into any problems that we couldn't 
resolve right in the Bureau, with some very few exceptionso 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Is it a very strict procedure, 
before the plans are okayed, that allowances are made for 
expansion of various facilities? 

DR$ SPARE: That we fund? 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: That expansion is allowed - I mean, 

that they make provisions for expansion of various facilities 
such as tte-library or such as --

DRe SPARE: We recommend it constantly. They don°t 
always follow it but we always try to tell themg don 9 t box 
yourself in with anything that may ~ave to be changed in the 
future, such as core facilities such as a iibrary or 
cafeteria or something which is put in the center of a 
building and surrounded by other things so that it can°t 
be expanded. This is not really a problem because most 
of the architects are aware of this. Of course~ where a 
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local district insists on a certai~ ar~angemento of course 
the architect satisfies his client despite the fact that 
he believes it to be wrong or that we argue against it. But 
we have no control or authority to make them change ite 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: What do you think of the School 
Board 0 s idea for the handicapped child being located only 
in certain buildings rather than have them incorporated in 
every building? 

c 
DR$ SPARE: Wello I think this is a controversial 

areae But talk about a student who breaks his leg who is 
[ 

going to be in a cast for six weeks, are you going to then 
L 

transfer him to another school because of that? As Mr~ 
Scrimenti mentionedo I think the only problem of cost is 
an elevator in a multi-story building and then I would say 
that the great majority of the multi-story buildings that 
have been built in recent years have an elevator anyhow~ 
Becausea for movement of equipment and supplies and other 
thingsu itGs a tremendous saving of personnel time and, 
efforta 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Undoubtedly if they didnvt, 
they would make it a negotiating item~ You know, they don't 
want to step more than one foot out of the way~ 

Then your feeling is that generally the handicapped 
should be provided for in any of the buildings that are 
put up~ 

DRe SPARE: I think soe I think the cost involved, 
as Mrm Thomas said and Mr~ Scrimenti, is so minimal when 
you're planning a building - and this isn°t retroactive 
to existing buildings® And how many buildihgs does a 
school normally build? There aren°t many Willingboros, I 
meano that are constantly building. I know Mr® Corda 
has a problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Do you have any feelings on the 
single contract or t~e multiple contract? Let me as~ one 
question® Were you an architect before or in construction? 
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DR~ SPARE: No® I'have been an educator all my 
life but previous to coming with the Staten 15 years agoo 
in this capacityo I was on the faculty at Rutgers University 
in the Division of Field Studies and Research in which we 
did facilities planning studies on contract for school 
districts~ So I was also involved in the same kind of 
work. I 0m strictly involved in the educational end of ito 
although I have to say I 0 ve absorbed a lot over the years 
in different fields through the help of architects and 
engineers and construction mene And we have a few men in 
our office who have actually been in the construction fields 
themselvesm 

On the multiple and single bid Io for yearso always 
maintained that I thought the multiple bidding would be 
the most economical but, in face of all the opposition I 0ve 
been getting in different State agencieso who are saying 
that the single overall is cheapero - on our last comment 
on the bill we said that in essence we were willing to go 
either way0 Bute as mentioned here earliero someone said 
we don°t have a person who is in general charge of the total 
construction® But it was recommended that it be assigned 
to the general contractor. Well, I am sure if he 0 s going 
to have that responsibility, he 0 s going to want some more 
money or a percentage of the total for supervision alone8 
So I donijt see it as a reduction® 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Welle if you don 1 t have the 
multiple bids and then assign them to the general con-
tractoro he goes out and gets the bids himself~ 

DRe SPARE: Yes 0 if it worked out that way. I 
think the problem of the identity of the individual 
mechanical trade person will represent a problem for years~ 
It 0 s only if you get the firms like Mcshane or Mccloskey 
who have all their own trades working for them on a 
permanent basis® These would be probably the only pe0ple 
who would be biddingo I would thinks until this other 
situation straightened out~ So maybe we 0 d be creating a 
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monopoly for a temporary periodm Althougha in the long 
runu I think the only way is to find oute 

Now about six months ago I got a call from the 
President of the Delaware State Board of Education where 
they have single overall contract only and their costs 
there were running about 30% more than in New JerseyQ 
They wanted to get information. They wanted to switch 
to the multiple contract. So I don°t know whether it 0 s 
just a local situation~ Some people down there had in-
formally asserted to meo whether true or noto that it 
became a sort of rotation in which contractors would take 
~~rns® Of courseo that 0 s hears~y0 

ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Thank you very muchm 
DR~ SPARE: Thank you for hearing me 
ASSEMBLYMAN EWING: Are there any other individuals 

who wish to make a statement? (Nb response) 
Wello thank you very much for attending~ 
We will close the hearing. 

(Hearing concluded) 
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EAST WINDSOR REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
HJGHTSl'OWN, NEW JFRSEY 08520 

Telephone 448-4840 
Area Code 609 

A STATEMENT PREPARED FOR THE PUBLIC HEARING OF THE 
ASSE:MBLY COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION ON ASSEMBLY BILL 

NO. 477 

I am John Hunt, Superintendent of Schools in the East Windsor 

Regional School District in East Windsor, New Jersey. With me today is 

Mr. Henry G. P. Coates, Attorney at Law, member of the firm of Turp, 

Coates, Essl and Driggers, and Board Attorney to the East Windsor Regional 

School District. 

We appreciate the opportunity to present our thinking on the 

proposed legislation concerning certain aspects of school building con-

struction, leasing and funding. We come before this connnittee to share 

with the connnittee our experiences in regard to the current applicable law 

and to present some suggestions concerning Assembly Bill 477. I shall take 

a few minutes to relate our experiences in the law as it exists, and then 

Mr. Coates will speak to the proposed legislation. 

Let me begin by locating and describing for the committee very 

quickly the East Windsor Regional School District. The district is located 

here in Mercer County in the northeast corner, approximately half way 

between Freehold and Princeton. It is a K through 12 district of 4200 

students serving five municipalities in three counties. The 12,000 residents 

of the Township of East Windsor and the 6,000 residents of the Borough of 

Hightstown are the owners, so to speak, of the district, and we receive by 

contract a total of about 400 students from the municipalities of Cranbury, 

Monroe and Roosevelt. 
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In less than a decade, the enrollment in the East Windsor School 

District has quadrupled, and in less than the next decade it is expected to 

quadruple again. East Windsor has one of the highest rates of growth in 

the State. Under construction in the district is the first planned unit 

development in New Jersey, Twin Rivers; this alone will add upwards of 

10,000 people to the district during the next three years. It is now nearing 

the half-way point in completion. The equalized value per child in the 

district is about $28,000. per child, slightly below the State average and 

holding. Through the end of 1969 the school district had been laboring to 

its fullest to construct school facilities which kept its capacities up 

with the burgeoning growth. To do this, the district consumed all of its 

bonding limit. With the advent of the planned unit development, the district 

found itself in a situation where it was in need of additional school capacities 

almost innnediately and yet was beyond its debt limit. In addition, the State 

had already -th:2 provided the school district with assistance through its 

Emergency State Building Aid Program. The connnunity therefore had a problem 

which can simply be stated. The school district needed more building capacity 

and yet had no money with which to build, and no time to wait. Without entering 

into the innumerable discussions, planning problems, etc., involved, suffice 

it to say that essentially a solution was found which accomplished the 

occupancy of a school building for 300-360 students, grades 3-5, in 

November of 1970. The Board of Education, the municipal Planning Board and 

the developer began their discussions in October of 1969, reached agreement 

in April of 1970, construction began innnediately, and within six months the 

students were attending school in their building, the Ethel McKnight School. 

The agreement reached called for the developer to build a builiing 

designed by the Board's Architect,$approved by the State Department of 
j 

Education's Facilities and Planning Service. It was further stipulated that 
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the funds to construct the building would be borrowed by the developer 

and that the Board would lease the building at a rate which essentially 

covered the interest charges 'on the funds borrowed by the builder. In 

addition, the agreement called for the Board's Auditor to audit the books 

of the developer to ascertain the exact amounts expended on the building 

and to insure prices which were arrived at through a process as nearly 

approximating public bid taking as possible in a private sector. With all 

these prerequisites accomplished, the Board entered into a one-year agree-

ment with the developer expressing an intent if possible to continue the 

agreement one year at a time for amaximum of five years if necessary and 

ultimately to buy the building through bond referendum. The Board went to 

the public after receiving the approval from the Department of Community 
) ,~ 

Affairs with the~question in March ~Ee furtheP dee-t for the 
( 

purposes of, purchasing this building. The community approved the bond 

referendum by a substantial margin on March 30, and we are now in the 

process of selling the bonds so that, at the end of the first year of leasing, 

the Board will buy the building. 

As the connnittee can see, there are any number of essential 

ingredients involved in the solution in this particular case; first and 

foremost essential ingredient was a Board of Education which was facing 

forward and determined to maintain the high caliber of education provided 

in the district in the face of rapid growth. Secondly, an essential ingredient 

was a municipal Planning Board which stood together with the Board of Education 

in the general intent to insure the overall quality and caliber of the connnunity 

in the years to come for all of its citizens. An essential ingredient, and 

one on which we rely heavily, was the assistance and advice throughout t:fte 

¥&&t stasa~ of the State Department of Education's Facilities and Planning 

Services. In addition, an ingredient of essential nature is a developer 
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who realizes that he accrues a community-wide responsibility in any community 

which grants approval for his construction proposals. And also I should add 

that it is neceasary to have an architect for the Board who sees his purpose 

clearly as getting his client the very most building for the very least 

dollar in the shortest amount of time. It was also a very necessary 

ingredient that there were financial and banking organizations within the 

connnunity who perceived their connnitment to the connnunity and their need 

to assist and to join in helping the connnunity achieve its perceived needs. 

And finally, an Attorney for the Board who approaches the law from the 

principle that the laws were written by and for the assistance of the 

governed, and I am indeed pleased to say that I have had the honor of 

associating with Mr. Henr~ Coates, East Windsor Regional Board Attorney, 

throughout this work. I am pleased to present to this connnittee 

Mr. Henry G. P. Coates who will speak to the specific legislation, 

Assembly Bill 477, which is before this connnittee. Following Mr. Coates 

words, we would be delighted to attempt to answer any questions which your 

connnittee might have. 
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.JAMES S TURP (RETIRED) 

HEN RY G P COATES 

LAW,OFFICES 

TURP, COATES, ESSL ANO DRIGGERS 
169 SOUTH MAIN STREET 

HIGHTSTOWN, NEW .JERSEY 08520 

TELEPHONE '4'48-00le 
KARL G E:551. (448-0035) AREA CODE eo9 
ooNALD s DR1GGe:Rs May 12, 1971 

TO THE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION: 

The following language is suggested for 
consideration in lieu of the proposed language 
of sub-paragraph (c) of Assembly Bill No. 477, 
introduced January 29, 1970 by Assemblyman 
McDonough, and referred to the Committee on 
Education: 

(c) May lease, in case of emergency, 
a building or structure for use for school pur-
poses whether or not such building or structure 
is located on district-owned land; provided that 
the building, or structure, and site, as the case 
may be, have been approved by the State Department 
of Education; and provided that the lease shall 
not extend beyond five years. Said lease may con-
tain a provision to purchase the building or 
structure, if it is re-locatable, or to purchase 
the site with the building thereon, at the option 
of the local Board of Education, subject to approval 
of the Division of Finance of the Department of 
Community Affairs, if required by law. An emergency 
is defined as existing when a school district ex-
ceeds its debt limit, or when the operating student 
capacities, as established by the District, are, or 
within the next two years, are projected to be, ex-
ceeded in practice by more than twenty per cent • 
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